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Concert to
Feature John
Michael Talbot
at Epiphany

Catholic Men 
Make Journey
To 13th Annual 
Conference 
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Inside

Catholics Called To
State Capitol for
Legislative Advocacy

The Commission for Justice and Human
Development is sponsoring “Catholics Living
Justice Day,” a citizen legislative advocacy
event on Tuesday, March 17. “Catholics are
encouraged to come to the Capitol to learn
about advocacy and the current legislative
session. Participants are encouraged to invite
their legislators to join them for lunch,” says
Sister Diane Koorie, chair for the
Commission. “It will be a wonderful way for
parishioners to learn how Catholic Social
Teaching can make a difference in the lives of
their fellow Oklahomans.”

A “Faith In Politics” workshop will begin
at 9 a.m. followed by a luncheon program at
11 a.m. Lunch will be provided for parish-
ioners and their legislators. Participants
should make reservations for themselves and
their legislators by March 13 by calling (405)
523-3003 or e-mailing bvanpool@catholic-
charitiesok.org. Assistance to find your legis-
lator’s name is available at www.capitolcon-
nect.com, click on Legislator Search on left
side.

The workshop will include presentations
about the role of advo-cacy in politics, an
overview of the legislative process, current
legislative  issues, and  the  Gospel
connection to political advocacy. Presenters
include David Blatt, with the Oklahoma
Policy Institute, who will address the role of
advo-cacy in the political process. Also,
Richard Klinge, social advocate for the
Archdiocese of Oklahoma City, will give an 

continued on page 23

Rite of Election Welcomes Close to 600 
OKLAHOMA CITY — The Cathedral of Our

Lady of Perpetual Help was filled on three separate
occasions on March 1 as those making their journey
to the Catholic faith came from throughout the
Archdiocese to participate in the Rite of Election.

Archbishop Beltran gave a special tip of the hat
to the 13 Catechumens and Candidates who traveled
with Father Bill Pruett from Saint Peter Church in
Guymon. The group left Guymon at 6 a.m. that
Sunday, arriving in Oklahoma City in time for lunch
before their 2 p.m. Rite of Election ceremony.

The Rite of Election was repeated again at 4:30
and 7 p.m.

Mary Fahy in the Office of Worship and Spiritual
Life said a total of 596 people took part in the Rite of
Election.

Mass for the newly Baptized and Newly
Received in the Catholic Church will be celebrated
on the Fourth Sunday of Easter, May 3, in the chapel
at the Catholic Pastoral Center.

In his homily, Archbishop Beltran enthusiasti-
continued on page 14

Archbishop Beltran listens as the next Catechumen is to be presented during the Rite of Election held
March 1. Behind the archbishop are Deacon Alfonso Lopez and Catechumens and their sponsors who
have already been presented. Sooner Catholic/Ray Dyer 



Exactly one month ago, I made a
sincere and urgent request to every
Catholic person in the Archdiocese of
Oklahoma City. It was the annual
appeal request we conduct every year
called ADF. Today I wish to make a
very public reply to all who have faith-
fully and generously responded to my
appeal. To each of you, I gratefully
acknowledge your financial gifts and
pledges for the 2009 ADF appeal.
Thank you and God bless you. I am
truly grateful for your financial
support for the mission of the Church
of this Archdiocese. I promise you that
your contribution will be used respon-
sibly, especially now during these
difficult financial times. May the good
Lord always bless you and the
ministries made possible by your
pledge to our ADF.

At this time, we are about two-
thirds of the way to our goal. There-
fore, I remind those who have not yet
made a pledge, please fill out a
commitment card today. As you know,
the final third of any appeal is the
most difficult of all to reach. There-
fore, each of you holds the key to
success. Your commitment, your
pledge, your financial gift to ADF
2009 is needed. Please join with me
and those who have already pledged.
We are one Catholic Church. We are
one people of faith. Let us thank God
for the gift of faith and all the other
blessings He gives us so abundantly.

As part of the ADF appeal, I
included an invitation to send me
your prayer requests. In that way, I
could be united with you and pray
together with you throughout this
year. The form for the prayer request
included a place for names of your

family members and friends who have
died. You and I together then would
continue to pray for the peaceful
repose of their souls. To pray for the
dead is indeed a good thing as
Scripture itself confirms and we
believe and trust. May all the souls of
the departed rest in peace.

A large part of the prayer request
card was available for your other
intentions. It is this section I wish to
discuss now. First, however, so you
might have some perspective on this
project, you should know that the
number of prayer card requests I have
received so far this year is about
2,000. I have read each of these and
then placed them in the basket before
the tabernacle in my chapel. Thus, I
will be reminded every day to pray for
these many intentions and for the
repose of the souls whom you have
named.

What has impressed me greatly is
the fact that the requested prayers
indicate a great faith among our
people. They are not simply requests
for things. They are not selfish peti-
tions. They seem to be sincere earnest
requests to God from people who
believe in Him. They are petitions and
requests for blessings, healings and
graces for others. There is no question
in my mind but that these prayer
requests emanate from what Jesus
said in the great commandment
because they reflect your love of God
and love of neighbor.

I wish to share with all of you
some of the most frequently requested
intentions. In that way, you too can
join with me in prayer.

In the prayers for health, the most
frequently requested prayers were for

cancer  patients, those  suffering
depression and alcohol and drug
addiction. In the overall requests, by
far the greatest numbers were from
parents and grandparents for their
children and grandchildren. In many
instances, prayers were asked that
they (their children and/or grand-
children) would return to the full
practice of our Catholic faith. Other
frequent requests expressed a concern
for  the  safety  of  our  military
personnel  and  for  our  country’s
security and well-being. Prayer for
happy marriages, for a greater respect
for human life, for employment and
because of fear regarding the financial
crisis were also frequently mentioned.

I am happy that so many of you
have entrusted your prayer requests
to me. I am pleased that I can join
with you in prayer for your personal
and individual requests. I pray that
all of us will come closer to our good
and gracious God Who loves us all so
much. May we praise and thank
Almighty God every day of our lives as
we pray with and for each other.
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The Good News                                              

... Gratitude and Prayers!
I pray that all 
of us will
come closer
to our good
and gracious
God Who
loves us all
so much.

Archbishop
Beltran

Young Men Invited On ‘Come and See’ Weekend  
OKLAHOMA CITY — The

Vocations Office is sponsoring the
annual “Come and See Weekend”
to Conception Seminary College in
Conception, Mo. This is an opportu-
nity for young men to visit the semi-
nary and experience the daily life of
a seminarian.

Last year there were 22 young
men who participated in the week-
end representing 11 parishes. Of

those young men, two are now semi-
narians studying for the Archdiocese
of Oklahoma City at Conception
Seminary College. Linh Bui, from
Our Lady’s Cathedral, is studying
Pre-Theology 1, and Jared Ortega,
from Holy Family, Lawton, is a
college freshman.

The bus will depart on Saturday,
March 28 at 8:30 a.m. from the
Catholic Pastoral Center and return

Monday, March 31 at 5 p.m. The bus
will make additional pickup stops as
requested with prior arrangements.
If you are a young man in high
school or older and are interested
in attending the “Come and See
Weekend,” please reserve your spot
on the bus by contacting the
Vocations Office at (405) 721-9351 or
e-mail jmulligan@catharchdiocese-
okc.org.
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‘Dead Man Walking’ Author, Sister Prejean, to Address Dinner 
OKLAHOMA CITY — The

Coalition to Abolish the Death
Penalty will hold its annual dinner
on March 21, at the Cathedral of
Our Lady of Perpetual Help,
Conner Center. This year’s featured
speaker is Sister Helen Prejean,
C.S.J.

Sister Helen, a native of
Louisiana, is
known interna-
tionally for her
tireless work
against the
death penalty.
She was
instrumental
in sparking
national dia-
logue on the
issue and in
shaping the
Catholic

Church’s vigorous opposition to all
state executions.

Sister Helen is a member of the
Congregation of St. Joseph. She
spent her first 24 years with the
Sisters teaching religion to junior
high school students and working
within her community, first as reli-
gious education director and then
as formation director. At the age of
40, she realized that being on the
side of poor people was an essential
part of the Gospel. She moved into
the St. Thomas Housing Project in
New Orleans and began working at
Hope House, a center that assists
public housing residents.

During this time, she was
asked to correspond with a death
row inmate. She agreed, and so
began a new journey. In 1982, she
started  visiting Patrick Sonnier in

Louis-iana’s Angola Prison. She
became his spiritual adviser,
worked to prevent his execution,
and finally walked with him to the
electric chair. She  did the same
thing with a second prisoner,
Robert Willie. Concerned with the
plight of murder victims’ families,
she founded “Survive,” which pro-
vides counseling and support for
grieving families.

And then she sat down and
wrote a book about the experience.
The result was “Dead Man
Walking: An Eyewitness Account of
the Death Penalty in the United
States,” which Random House pub-
lished in 1993. The book became a
bestseller, was nominated for a
Pulitzer Prize, and spawned an
Oscar-winning movie and an inter-
nationally acclaimed opera. Now
Time Robbins has made it into a
play that is being performed by

high school  and college  students
across the country.

Since 1984, Sister Helen has
divided her time between cam-
paigning against the death penalty
and counseling individual death
row prisoners. She has accompa-
nied six more men to their deaths.
In doing so, she began to suspect
that some   of those executed were
not guilty. This realization inspired
her second book, “The Death of
Innocents: An Eyewitness Account
of Wrongful Convictions,” which
was released by Random House in
December of 2004.

She is a regular interviewee
and contributor to national and
international publications, and has
be-come a recurring presence on
major TV news shows. Besides her
degrees in English and religious
education, Sister Helen has
received honorary degrees from

universities all over the world and
numerous awards. Sister Helen
lives in New Orleans and works
with the Death Penalty Discourse
Center, the Moratorium Campaign
and the Dead Man Walking Play
Project. She is presently at work on
another book — “River of Fire: My
Spiritual Journey to Death Row.”

Music for the dinner will be
provided by Mary Reynolds and
Louise Goldberg.

More information about the
dinner may be obtained by contact-
ing Jim Rowan, chairman of the
Oklahoma Coalition to Abolish the
Death Penalty, at (405) 239-2454,
or e-mail him at
jrowan@ramlaw.biz. Tickets for the
dinner are $40 for adults and $15
for students. There will be an infor-
mal opportunity to meet Sister
Helen at the Connor Center from 6
to 7 p.m. followed by the dinner.

Sister Helen Prejean,
C.S.J.

Rome Celebrates Montana Senate Vote on Death Penalty
ROME, MARCH 3, 2009 (Zenit.org).— A Montana

state Senate decision to abolish the death penalty was
marked in Rome on Monday -- the Colosseum was lit
up to celebrate another step toward the end of capital
punishment.

The Senate's decision last month still has to pass
through the state's House of Representatives and be
signed by the governor to become law, but the
Community of Sant'Egidio celebrated the 27-23 vote as
a victory.

At the initiative of that Catholic lay community,
the ancient Roman site for killing Christians is set
alight whenever a death sentence is commuted or a
government moves toward abolishing the punishment.

If Montana abolishes the death penalty, it will be
the third state to stop the procedure, following New

York and New Jersey.
"The his toric vote in the Montana Senate is a clear

sign that public opinion in the United States is tending
toward the abolition of capital punishment," a state-
ment from the Sant'Egidio Community affirmed.

Last week, those same Montana legislators acted
as the first U.S. state senate to approve a personhood
amendment. Like the death penalty ruling, the amend-
ment has to pass the House of Representatives and be
signed by the governor. But pro-lifers are lauding the
vote as a key accomplishment.

The bill defines persons as "a human being at all
stages of human development of life, including the
state of fertilization or conception, regardless of age,
health, level of functioning, or condition of dependen-
cy."

Archdiocese Offers Help for Those Suffering from the Pain of Abortion
Between the government and the

popular media, many would be led to
believe that abortion is “no big deal,”
and might even be good for some
women. The reality is            — abor-
tion hurts women. Many women
struggle tremendously after abor-
tion. They struggle with de-pression,
anxiety, eating and sleeping disor-
ders, self-esteem and loss of control
issues, and for some, even suicide.

Some women recognize these
struggles immediately after the
abortion. For others, it is years later,
and only after going from  doctor to
doctor and counselor to counselor,
that they are able to          see the con-
nection between their difficulties
and their abortion.

Often, it is not just the post-
abortive woman that suffers. There
are family members and friends that

suffer as well. It is quite     common
for the fathers of the lost babies to
struggle, but there are others, too.
Others see that a baby has been lost,
and their loved one is hurt. They
grieve the child, and may struggle
with the role they played — maybe
they encouraged, or didn’t discour-
age the abortion.

The Archdiocese of Oklahoma
City understands these struggles

and offers a ministry of hope.
Rachel’s Vineyard is a healing week-
end for those suffering after abor-
tion. We also offer Layers of Healing,
as monthly follow-up meetings for
anyone who has at-tended a Rachel’s
Vineyard retreat anywhere.

For more information, contact
Paulette Finnegan at 623-3844,
okcrachel@yahoo.com     or     www.-
Rachelsvineyard.org.



4  Sooner Catholic     March 8, 2009●●

Talbot to Deliver Musical Message of Spirituality in Concert
OKLAHOMA CITY — Inter-

nationally known musician, author
and humanitarian John Michael
Talbot will perform in concert at 7:30
p.m. Saturday, March 21 at Epiphany
of the Lord Catholic Church, 7336 W.
Britton Road. Talbot will be sharing
the songs which have made him one
of the most prominent and beloved
performers of Christian music. This
will be Talbot’s only stop in Oklahoma
as he appears in a series of solo
concerts in Oklahoma, Texas and
Louisiana. Many have called these
concerts “musical retreats.”

“Just being there to experience
the meditation touched my heart and
soul in a way that is truly indescrib-
able … it took a few days to return to
earth,” a recent concert-goer said, a
sentiment strongly felt among Talbot’s
listeners, one which has driven record-
ing sales to heights which place the
Dove-award  winner  as  Catholic
music’s premier artist.

The deep spirituality of Talbot’s
music transcends denominations,
uniting his audiences on a prayerful
journey of praise and worship, offering
a unique combination of music, teach-
ing and spiritual guidance which
provides the participants with an
unparalleled experience.

“I’ve never encountered anything
like it in my life,” said a fellow profes-

sional musician drawn to the concert
by Talbot’s reputation as a guitarist.
“Not only is he an excellent musician,
but the occasion of all of those
people in a state of … whatever it was
… was tangible, powerful … electrify-
ing.”

The tour is specifically to raise
funds for the rebuilding of Talbot’s
home, Little Portion Hermitage
Monastery, which suffered a vicious
fire on April 29, 2008, burning the
chapel and the Common Center to the
ground in less than an hour and a half.
All survived, though members of the

community, including Talbot, suffered
from the effects of smoke inhalation.
Various awards were destroyed along
with countless library books, archives,
inventory and tour equipment. Talbot
credits his life in monastic community
as key to the creation of his music.

Previous tours have resulted in
Talbot’s raising more than $4 million
for international relief and develop-
ment agency Mercy Corps, making
Talbot their largest individual fund
raiser. A recipient of their Human-
itarian of the Year award, he has also
been honored with the President’s

Merit Award from the National
Academy of Recording Arts and
Sciences as well as with  performing
for Mother Teresa of Calcutta and
Pope John Paul II.

A former county-rock star with
the band Mason Proffit, Talbot gave
up the riches accompanying fame
and in time founded the integrated
community of The Brothers and
Sisters of Charity at Little Portion
Hermitage in the Ozark Mountains of
Arkansas where he serves as spiritual
father and general minister as well as
founder and president of the Catholic
Association of Musicians.

Talbot’s recordings and fans are
global in distribution, inspiring letters
of gratitude and appreciation which
often recount life-altering moments
including reports of listening during
the birth of children and even at the
death of a loved one.

Tickets for the concert are $15 in
advance or $20 on the day of the
performance.

Advance tickets are available at
the following locations: St. Thomas
More Books, OKC; Mardel Stores (four
metro locations); Office of Worship
(Catholic Pastoral Center, OKC);
Epiphany Catholic Church, OKC;
Sacred Heart Gifts, Edmond.

For more information, call (405)
721-5651 Ext. 158.

John Michael Talbot. Photo provided.

Catholic Radio to Expand in Oklahoma   
OKLAHOMA CITY — Catholic

radio in Oklahoma has taken a big
step forward with plans for a new
station to serve the Lawton area. The
FCC has awarded St. Mary’s School
and Blessed Sacrament Church a
permit to apply to construct an FM
radio station, which will be managed
by Oklahoma Catholic Broadcasting.
Plans calls for the station to broadcast
around the clock every day of the
week.

“It will take about three years to
build the station,” said Jeff Finnell,
one of the directors for the Oklahoma
Catholic Broadcasting. “Archbishop
Beltran has been very instrumental in
making this happen. He is very ex-
cited about this opportunity to reach
more people in southwest Oklahoma.”

The new station will mean more
people have the opportunity to hear

the shows featured on Catholic radio
every day. Some of the programs on
the schedule include:

“Open Line,” a call-in show with a
new host every day. Listeners are
encouraged to ask questions and com-
ment on each host’s area of expertise.

Also, “Bookmark,” in which host
Doug Keck reviews Catholic authors
and their books.

“Good News Sunday,” a local
program with Deacon Larry Sousa
and Fred Pope, previews the upcoming
Gospel readings for the weekend
Mass.

“Kresta in the Afternoon,” featur-
ing Catholic speaker and author Al
Kresta talking with people from all
walks of life about their journeys with
the Lord. Other programming includes
“Catholic Answers Live,” “Mother
Angelica” and “Life on the Rock.”

Efforts are being made to raise
$100,000 to help with construction.
Contributions  can  be  sent  to

Oklahoma Catholic Broadcasting at
P.O. Box 721041, Norman Okla. 73070,
or call (405) 321-8080 Ext. 391.

Deacon Larry Sousa, right, and Fred Pope in the Oklahoma Catholic Broad-
casting booth at the recent Catholic Men’s Conference. Sooner Catholic/Ray Dyer
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Ardmore Eagle Scout Achieves Quest to Earn Every Badge 
ARDMORE — In 2003, at 11

years old, Wes Weaver set a goal to
earn all 121 merit badges Boy Scouts
had to offer. Wes’ accomplishment
began with a challenge from his first
Scoutmaster at Troop 112, David
Mannas. Mannas challenged all the
Scouts to exceed the 21 required
badges to make Eagle and the 44
merit badges he himself had earned.
Weaver thought that if someone could
earn 44, he could earn them all.

Weaver’s quest ended in triumph
on Feb. 15, four weeks before his 18th
birthday, by playing TAPS to complete
the Bugling merit badge require-
ments. Weaver is the first in at least
10 years to achieve this honor in the
Arbuckle Council that covers nine
south central Oklahoma counties,
including Ardmore, Ada, Pauls Valley
and surrounding areas. BSA does not
keep track of how many Scouts earn
all the merit badges, but an indepen-
dent Web site has started posting
Scouts’ information that have set and

met the goal. In 2008, there were less
than two dozen Eagles nationwide to
earn all the merit badges. None of
those listed were from Oklahoma.

Many of Weaver’s merit badges
were earned in the traditional
fashion, at the many summer and
winter camps he attended over the
years. Weaver’s father, Rusty Weaver,
became the Scoutmaster of Troop 112
and is a climbing director for Arbuckle
Area Council. “My dad would be at
camp two to four weeks a summer so
I stayed at camp and took all the
merit badge classes I could. Before I
knew it, I had 80 merit badges.”

“I am what most people would call
an over-achiever. To me, setting goals,
big or small, and achieving them is
the way to get ready for college and
life in general. Attaining goals gives
me confidence that will always stay
with me. Kids need confidence,
Scouting gives it to them.”

“People in my community, school
and church have been very supportive

and encouraging of my goal. There
was not a single person or group I
called on to help that wasn’t glad to
talk to me. I could not have done it
without so many willing to give their
time and talent.”

Community service is a big part of
Scouting. Weaver has been involved in
service to the Ardmore community
since 2004 when he worked on the
first of 16 other Eagle Scout Service
projects. In October, 2007, Weaver
finished his own Eagle Project in Lake
Murray State Park. Weaver designed
and supervised the completion of a
112-foot walking bridge, cleared 100
yards of new trail and set a bench at
one end with the help of Troop 112
Scouts and their parents. The project
required 550 man-hours to complete.

Weaver has helped recruit Cub
Scouts and Boy Scouts alike. “Kids see
all the merit badges on the sash and
the other awards on my uniform and
think it’s cool. I tell them they can
accomplish the same thing. Mr.

Mannas got me started; maybe I can
inspire other kids to do the same.”

Scouting has much to offer and
Weaver has taken full advantage of
those opportunities. He has earned
the Catholic religious emblems Ad
Altare Dei, Pope Pius XII and Inter-
national Scouting Award, participated
in the Duty to God and Rosary Patch
programs, experienced SeaBase in
Key West, Fla., spent two weeks back-
packing at Philmont Scout Ranch in
New Mexico, and is an Order of the
Arrow Vigil member.

Alan Dubea, president of the
Arbuckle Area Council said, “When
less than 4 percent of boys that join
Scouting achieve the rank of Eagle,
it is almost unheard of that anyone
ever earns all 121 merit badges. In
my 17-year tenure in Scouting, I
have only heard of this happening
twice, in Michigan and New York.
It just shows the work ethic and
determination Wes has to achieve his
personal goals.”

True Fast Prepares Our Spirits for Feast of Eternal Life
The season of Lent is upon us and

Catholics around the world are
embracing various forms of fasting
and abstinence in preparation for the
holiest week of the year. But why do
we fast? How does saying no to food
or other bodily pleasures actually
increase our love for God?

Christian fasting is not rooted in
suspicion toward or rejection of the
physical world, the human body, or
the pleasures of food. Precisely the
opposite. Only those who know how to
fast properly know how to feast. We
fast, first of all, the Catechism says, to
“prepare us for the liturgical feasts.”
(CCC 2043). Fasting allows us to feel
our hunger. And feeling our physical
hunger can, if we allow it, lead us to
feel our spiritual hunger, that is, our
hunger for God. Think of the woman
at the well: she came there physically
thirsty and left with the promise of
living water flowing from the well of
salvation.

If feeling our hunger can awaken
our spiritual senses, never feeling
hunger can dull them. Furthermore,
when we always satisfy our hunger,
we can become enslaved by the
pleasures of this world. Fasting and
abstinence “help us acquire mastery

over our instincts and freedom of
heart.” (CCC 2043). And this kind of
freedom is especially important for
people like me who love to eat.

Oh, do I ever! In fact, at the end of
a meal I often feel a pointed (and even
poignant) sadness. I sometimes find
myself picking the minutest of crumbs
off my plate in an attempt to stretch
the enjoyment until every last morsel
is gone. But I’m only putting off the
inevitable. This meal is going to end.
It’s going to end! One more crumb and
its over. Done. Finished. Something in
me screams: No! I want this to last
forever ... And there it is — my yearn-
ing for the infinite ... my yearning for
God. The sadness I feel at the end of a
meal can either lead to gluttony (the
idolatry of food) or I can accept the
“pain” of my desire and allow it to
open me to the living hope of the  eter-
nal banquet. Fasting, properly prac-
ticed, is a wide open door precisely to
this hope.

God desires to feed us — and not
just from any po’ boys menu, but with
“juicy, rich food, and pure, choice
wines” (Is 25:6), with “bread come
down from heaven” (Jn 6:41).
Scripture describes heaven itself as a
feast — a wedding feast (see Rev

19:9). And let us not
forget Christ’s first
miracle: at the end
of the party when
the wedding guests
had already finished
the wine, Christ
provides gallons
and gallons of
the finest wine
imaginable. As the
glory of Pentecost
indicates, we are all called to get
“drunk” on this new wine (see Acts
2:13).

This kind of “holy intoxication” is
a favorite theme of the mystics. For in
the Song of Songs, the King invites his
bride into the “wine cellar” (1:4).
Teresa of Avila offers this commen-
tary: “The King seems to refuse noth-
ing to the Bride! Well, then, let her
drink as much as she desires and get
drunk on all these wines in the cellar
of God! Let her enjoy these joys,
wonder at these great things, and not
fear to lose her life through drinking
much more than her weak nature
enables her to do. Let her die at last
in this paradise of delights; blessed
death that makes one live in such a
way.”

Wow! If authentic Christian fast-
ing is meant to prepare me for this
kind of feasting, bring it on! But
what, we might ask, is the difference
between this kind of “holy in-
dulgence” and the frat-party beer
bong? It’s this: We become gluttons
and drunkards when we seek satis-
faction of our desire for Infinity in
the earth’s wine, but we become
saints when we seek satisfaction of
our desire for Infinity in heaven’s
wine.

Should we, then, reject the
earth’s wine? No! That is the essen-
tial error of puritanism and Manich-
aeism — the idea that the physical
world and its pleasures are evil. No,
they aren’t evil. Properly embraced,
they are little sacraments, little fore-
tastes of heaven.

In fact, how does God communi-
cate heaven’s wine to us? Precisely
through earth’s wine: “Blessed are
you, Lord, God of all creation.
Through your goodness we have this
wine to offer, fruit of the vine and
work of human hands. It will become
our spiritual drink.” But in order to
enter the Infinite delights of this
liturgical feast, we will need to learn
to fast.

By Christopher
West
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SGU Recognized for Providing Authentic Catholic Education

SHAWNEE — St. Gregory’s
University was recognized recently
in two national Catholic publications.

In a story on catholicexchange.
com, writer Stephen Pohl describes
the recent resolution passed by
SGU’s Student Government Associa-
tion, a “model resolution for Catholic
universities in America.”

The resolution, passed amid this
year’s March for Life activities,
encourages the St. Gregory’s commu-
nity to participate in future pro-life
events. The resolution also includes
that the university support future
trips to March for Life, that the
school offer a class that studies
marriage and family, and that SGU
commit to pro-life considerations

when making decisions on invest-
ments.

Pohl leads into his story by
saying, “St. Gregory’s University,
Shawnee, Oklahoma: Ever heard of
it? Me neither, until last month, that
is. It’s a  small, a very small, Catholic
school in Oklahoma, with only 800
students on its two campuses. No big
sports teams like the famous
Catholic universities; but apparently
no weak theology department either,
like some of the big famous
campuses; and no weak student body
or student government either. Let us
all stand and pray: “Please Sir, can
we have some more?”

He also goes on to say, “The
St. Gregory’s University Student
Government  Association is the voice
of its community and its resolution is
a perfect example of the laity acting

in its proper sphere of influence
and apostolate. It is laity-formed,
supported and strengthened by its
Benedictine sacramental ministers
and their collaborators, sent out to
convert the world, starting within its
own community, calling it to be light
and leaven in a dark and heavy
culture and calling it to put its
money where its mouth is. May the
work of its hands prosper.”

SGU also was mentioned in a
story by the Catholic News Agency.
The CNA quoted a study by The
Center for the Study of Catholic
Higher Education (the research divi-
sion for the Cardinal Newman
Society), which concluded that “the
most faithful colleges are also some
of the most affordable for students.”
The study compared the “faithful”
Catholic colleges recommended in

“The Newman Guide to Choosing a
Catholic College: What to Look for
and Where to Find” with other Cath-
olic and private colleges on issues
such as tuition, institutional aid,
student debt and overall afforda-
bility. St. Gregory’s is one of the 21
colleges recommended by the Cardi-
nal Newman Society, which ranks
among the top  10 percent of Catholic
colleges in the United States.

And lastly, SGU’s Benedictine
Hall was on the cover of the inaugu-
ral “Bulletin of Catholic Higher
Education.” The bulletin is a quarter-
ly publication of The Center for the
Study of Catholic Higher Education.

According to the publication, the
bulletin provides “fresh insights into
issues affecting Catholic colleges and
universities and shares information
about successful initiatives.”

By Brad Collins
St. Gregory’s Univeristy

Irish Student Honored
For Volunteer Efforts

OKLAHOMA CITY- Bishop
McGuinness Catholic High School
senior Greg Latta has been honored
for his exemplary volunteer service
with a President's Volunteer
Service Award. The award, which
recognizes Americans of all ages
who have volunteered significant
amounts of their time to serve their
communities and their country, was
presented by the Prudential Spirit
of Community Awards program on
behalf of the President's Council on
Service and Civic Participation.
Greg participated in the Spirit of
Community program this year as a
representative of Bishop
McGuinness.

Sponsored by Prudential
Financial in partnership with the
National Association of Secondary
School Principals (NASSP), The
Prudential Spirit of Community
Awards program recognizes young
people across America for outstand-
ing community service activities.
More than 250,000 young people
across America have been consid-
ered for these awards since the pro-
gram began in 1995.

Greg was honored for his volun-
teer work with Friends of Bolivia, a

local organi-
zation that
p r o v i d e s
m e d i c a l
assistance to
the needy
people of
Bolivia. He
spent a week
in Bolivia
helping a
group of doc-
tors and
nurses. He
spent almost
200 hours on
the project.

"I am honored to receive this
award. I find it one of my passions
to serve others and make a differ-
ence in other peoples lives," Greg
said. "I also hope to inspire others,
especially my peers to do the same
because we as the youth of America
need to stand up together and make
the world a better place." 

McGuinness Principal David
Morton had high praise for Latta.
"Greg has always been very giving
of his time. His willingness and
dedication to serve others makes
me very proud of him," he said.

Greg Latta 

OKLAHOMA CITY — Bishop John Carroll School student athletes (from
left) Edmund Pedulla, Anthony Nguyen, Cecilia Thompson, Dalayah
Reid, Marissa Bray, Alex Eakers, James Fidel and Candace Grantham
present Sister Barbara Joseph Foley with a check for $750 for her down-
town food pantry for the homeless. The funds were raised as part of the
13th annual Bishop’s Classic, an eighth-grade basketball tournament in
which Catholic schools, Christian academies, charter and traditional
public schools and home school teams compete. This is the third year the
tournament provided funds to the pantry, in addition to the monthly col-
lections of food, water and clothing provided by Our Lady’s Cathedral
Parish.

Supporting Sister
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Letters
Not a Conflict 

As followers of Christ, all of us are called to be
faithful to the Gospel and to abide by Christ’s
teachings as they have been passed on to us in
the moral and social encyclicals of our Church.
Catholic Charities embraces these teachings as
fundamental, and gives daily witness to the sanc-
tity of human life in the services freely given to
assist adolescent girls and women who are not
prepared to face the issue of pregnancy. In a social
culture which condones the violence of one’s right
to choose abortion, Catholic Charities works with
persons of all faiths and persuasions to protect the
human lives of all who are at risk. Our ministries
are done in cooperation with both Catholic institu-
tional partners and volunteer community organiza-
tions.

Catholic Social Teaching tells us that all life
is sacred and this teaching is fundamental to
JustFaith. It requires that we always choose life
from conception to death. This neither conflicts
nor competes with the Church’s work to eliminate
abortion. JustFatih calls people to conversion by de-
veloping a more profound understanding of justice,
so that all works of ministry, including support
for the unborn, will flourish. In 1999, when His
Holiness John Paul II arrived in St. Louis, he    stat-
ed that to choose life involves rejecting every form
of violence, including poverty, hunger, armed con-
flict, drug trafficking, racism and environmental
disruption. As faithful Christians, we have the
responsibility to use power to advance the common
good of all persons, particularly for those who are
defenseless.

Our greatest fear is realized when persons of
good intentions fail to act and do what is right.

Tim O’Connor
Director, Catholic Charities

Two sides, same coin 
In response to just one part of Dr. Dominic M.

Pedulla’s letter in the Feb. 22 issue of the Sooner
Catholic, his attempt to drive a wedge between
faith and justice. A basic biblical theme, in fact
possibly the root of the Judeo-Christian imagina-
tion, is the connection between the two.

It is the basic inspiration of the Hebrew
prophets, it is central to the notion of covenant, it is
the fulcrum of the Ten Commandments, and it is a
fundamental concern of Jesus. Our relationship
with God (spirituality) and our relationships with
our neighbors (justice) are positively correlated —
they rise or sink together. It is unthinkable to imag-
ine that one’s spirituality will deepen and develop
without growth in one’s commitment and involve-
ment in justice for one’s neighbors. It is likewise
unthinkable that one’s dedication to the service of
one’s neighbor will deepen and grow without
growth in one’s commitment and involvement in
one’s faith in God. One cannot increase one’s faith
and spirituality by diminishing one’s commitment
to justice and one cannot increase one’s commit-
ment to justice without an increase of faith in the
God of Jesus. They are two sides of the same coin.

But let us imagine, just for a moment, that God
came to us in a vision and offered us a choice to be
either deeply spiritual or to be a doer of justice. I
know it’s absurd, but just imagine it. To help with
the choice, I suggest you read Matt 25.31-46, Luke
10.29-37, 1 Jn 4.20-21, 1 Tim 6.17-19, and James
2.14-26.

Faith and justice, love of God and love of
neighbor, spirituality and good works, prayer and

deeds, body and soul, and, in the end, the divinity
and humanity of Jesus, all of these, are positively
correlated and mutually causal. As Catholics, it is
never either/or. It is always both/and.

Vince Brady, St. Charles, OKC
Life not cheap

My wife and I were heartened to see the arch-
bishop’s article concerning FOCA, pointing out the
evils that this proposed legislation represents, and the
comprehensive way in which it could erase years of
small gains made in the fight against abortion.

My parents told us children once, by way of
teaching us a little bit about the cultures of the
world, that “life was cheap” in certain parts of the
world. A cliché perhaps. But how has it become
possible that our own culture now thinks that
poverty results from too much life, that we shouldn’t
simply work harder to support this life and worry
less about our own comfort, that “unwanted”
children are some form of punishment, and denying
that plentiful life offers great riches and possibili-
ties.

The election is over. I hope that Catholics and all
sincere people, regardless of how they voted, would
see abortion as the prideful effort to tell God that He
has nothing to say about new life, and as the em-
blem of every destructive force aimed at the family
of a man, a woman and their children, united with
God.

I hope we will join Archbishop Beltran in lobby-
ing against this proposal, or other piece-meal
attempts to implement it stealthily, and pray daily
not only for an end to abortion, but that hearts may
be softened in those who want to continue and
expand its presence.

David and Donna Robillard

Across Oklahoma
Easter Lilies Available

OKARCHE — Easter lilies are now available
at The Center of Family Love, 635 W. Texas,
Okarche. Prices range from $12 to $19.50. Call
(405) 263-4465 to place your order. Delivery is
available in some areas.

Parish Sets Dinner
OKLAHOMA CITY — Feast of St. Joseph din-

ner March 19 at St. Charles Church, will begin
with Mass at 6:30 p.m. and dinner at 7:30 p.m.
Cost is $5 per person or $20 per family plus a non-
perishable food item for the Dorothy Day Center.
For more information, contact the parish office at
(405) 789-2595.

NFP Classes Offered
EDMOND  —  Natural  Family  Planning

can help postpone a pregnancy or achieve a
pregnancy. It is an ongoing observation and inter-
pretation of the symptoms presented by the body
each month. Learn the Sympto-thermal method
of Natural Family Planning with Jeanne Blasi,
certified instructor, March 25 at 7 p.m. at St. John
the Baptist Church, 9th and Boulevard. Cost of
the series is $135. Free child care is available
upon request. For information or to register, call
Dr. Harry Kocurek at 340-0691 Ext. 109.

Death Topic of Presentations 
OKLAHOMA CITY — A topic that affects

everyone, “Embracing Our Journey Home: The
Christian Perspective of Death and Dying” series,
is designed to look at the mystery of death and
dying in a variety of ways. Each presentation will
be held from 7 to 9 p.m. at the Catholic Pastoral
Center, 7501 Northwest Expressway. The topics

and dates are March 30 - Spirituality of Suffering;
May 11 - What the Arts May Teach Us About
Death and Resurrection; Sept. 15 - Dying Well in
the Catholic Tradition; Nov. 9 - The Road to the
Father’s House: The Last Four Things. For more
information, contact the Office of Family Life at
721-5651.

Priest to Lead Pilgrimage 
OKLAHOMA CITY — Father Joe Arledge,

pastor from Sacred Heart, will lead a pilgrimage
to the Holy Land from Oct 5-14, 2009. Cost is
$2,950 per person and includes round-trip air,
hotels, all fees and gratuities, escorted guides, air-
conditioned motor coaches, daily breakfast and
dinners. Deposit is $450 each with final payment
by June 16.An early booking discount is available.
For more information, contact John Tagnesi at 1-
888-544-4461 or jtag1964@verizon.net.
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Touted Vaccine Turns Out to Cause Great Harm to Girls
I’m usually not the kind of person

to say “I told you so.” But in this case,
I’m more than happy to make an
exception.

Two years ago, I wrote an article
called “A Virus that Causes Cancer?”
In it, I discussed the then-new vaccine
Gardasil, which helps protect women
against the HPV virus, a sexually
transmitted organism that can lead to
cervical cancer. Several states were in
the process of mandating the vaccine
— for girls as young as 11 — under
intense pressure from Merck’s lobby-
ing efforts. I pointed out that early
signs were not good, with a high
number of reported side effects includ-
ing fainting, loss of vision and
seizures. More important, I noted that
there had been absolutely no studies
on the long-term safety of the vaccine.
Given the highly preventable nature
of HPV-related cervical cancer, I
thought it was senseless — downright
dumb — to expose young girls to these
kinds of risks.

I received a lot of feedback from
that article. Some thanked me.
Others reposted and republished it in
other sources. But many, many people
wrote to argue with me. Girls are
going to have sex no matter what we
do. We need to protect them. What
kind of freakish 1950s era time warp
do I live in? One doctor wrote an
impassioned letter defending her
practice of vaccinating her young
female patients with Gardasil. She
wrote about the critical importance of
Gardasil in protecting our young
women’s futures — and acknowledged

almost as an aside
that yes, there are
still questions about
the long-term safety
of the vaccine.

That was then.
Let’s fast forward
two years.

I was flipping
around the TV chan-
nels the other night,
and for some reason
I stopped on the CBS Evening News.
(Must’ve been the Holy Spirit, because
I’m generally not a big network news
fan.) And soon I was watching a
feature story titled “New Worries
About Gardasil Safety.” The piece
started with a very sweet-looking
young girl. Gabby Swank, who got
the vaccine because “we felt almost
pressured by the commercials.” After-
ward, she got sicker and sicker, even-
tually suffering seizures, strokes and
severe heart problems. She is now too
sick to even attend school. Next we
went to a heartsick mother, Emily
Tarsell, whose daughter, Chris, wasn’t
as “lucky” as Gabby. Chris died after
receiving the vaccine.

Chris is not alone. Twenty-nine
deaths have been reported from the
Gardasil vaccine. Twenty-nine deaths.
It almost makes me cry just to write it.
Twenty-nine  young  women’s  lives
have been cut short, all because a drug
manufacturer convinced them that a
vaccine would “protect” them.

And among the living, the carnage
continues. A recent study by the
National Vaccine Information Center

compared Gardasil side effects to
another vaccine given to patients in
the same age group. Gardasil led to
three times (that’s 300 percent) more
emergency room visits, five times (500
percent) more fatalities, and 30 times
(3000 percent) more side effects. And
these are not minor side effects. We’re
talking strokes, heart episodes, lupus,
paralysis.Young girls seem to be wind-
ing up permanently disabled. If you
want to see for yourself, just google
“Gardasil video” to see young girl after
young girl who has had to give up
sports, social life and even attending
school because of Gardasil-induced
health problems.

In the meantime, Merck, the
manufacturer of Gardasil, is standing
by their product. Last July, when 15
young women had died from the
vaccine, Merck said it believed that
“no safety issue related to the vaccine
has been identified.” No statement to
the contrary has been issued by Merck
as of this writing, and their Gardasil
Web site continues to encourage
young women — and their parents —
to avail themselves of the vaccine.
And, incredibly, Merck is now petition-
ing the FDA to be allowed to inject
boys with the vaccine, because they
may be carriers of the virus.

All of this makes me really, really
mad. This is about putting profits (in
Merck’s case) and ideology (in the case
of many of Gardasil’s advocates) over
the lives and health of young, innocent
women (and, if Merck gets their way,
men).

It would be one thing if we were

vaccinating against some uncurable
deadly plague that was wiping out an
entire generation. Then maybe the
benefits would outweigh the risks.
But neither HPV nor HPV-related
cancers are The Plague. The virus is
sexually transmitted, so abstinence
and marriage to an uninfected partner
offers 100 percent protection. But we
don’t even need to tread into the
treacherous waters of the “kids are
going to do it anyway” debate to
acknowledge that HPV-related deaths
are extremely preventable.

We have pap smears. Those lovely
pap smears detect HPV-related warts
and pre-cancerous changes to the
cervix. It is because of our friend the
pap smear that cervical cancer deaths
declined 74 percent between 1955 and
1992 — the same time period wherein
the rate of unmarried sexual activity
was rising dramatically.Those cervical
cancer deaths, according to the
American Cancer Society, continue to
decline at a rate of about 4 percent a
year.

We don’t need Gardasil to prevent
cervical cancer. Gardasil is the closest
thing I’ve ever seen to an out and
out pharmaceutical hoax foisted on
American women under the guise of
“public health.” It is dangerous, and
only exists on the market today as a
testament to corporate greed and the
“profits over people” mentality.

Please, do not allow yourself or
your daughters to be injected with the
Gardasil vaccine. Tell others the same.
Spread the word.

Young lives may depend on it.

By Mary Beth
Bonacci

Catholic Charities Provide Support to Victims of Tornado
LONE GROVE- The deadly torna-

dos which struck southern and central
Oklahoma on Feb. 10, have called
Catholic Charities Disaster Assistance
Program into action. Catholic
Charities USA and Catholic Charities
of Oklahoma City have already assist-
ed individuals in more than 25 house-
holds and are working with other
state, federal and volunteer organiza-
tions to assure these victims receive
help, even after they have exhausted
their insurance and eligibility for gov-
ernmental funds.

Catholic Charities staff has been

onsite at the Disaster Recovery Center
in Lone Grove since it opened, assess-
ing victims' needs.

“Since many of those who lost
everything in the Lone Grove tornado
were renting mobile homes in the
affected area, significant outside help
will be needed because the victims will
not have sufficient income to qualify
for federal loans,” said Kay Smith,
LCSW, Associate Director of Child and
Family Services for Catholic Charities.
"Catholic Charities case managers are
working with all individuals and fami-
lies who are disaster survivors regard-

less of their spiritual beliefs."

Catholic Charities USA has pro-
vided an initial grant of $10,000 to
assist Catholic Charities of Oklahoma
City with its response. Also enlisted
has been the support of St. Mary's
Parish in Ardmore and Mercy
Memorial Health Center to assist in
the efforts to help the individuals and
families return to normalcy. Catholic
Charities representatives met with
local service organizations and the
United Way of South Central
Oklahoma to discuss the resources and
assistance available through Catholic

Charities and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.

The organization is seeking addi-
tional external support which will be
used solely for direct assistance.
Archbishop Beltran has recommended
that persons who want to make a spe-
cial donation for this work either con-
tact Catholic Charities directly or con-
tribute to its special disaster relief
fund. Those interested in helping the
victims of Lone Grove can contact
Catholic Charities of the Archdiocese
of Oklahoma City at 405-523-3000 or
800-375-8514 (toll free).
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OKLAHOMA CITY — Alfred
Lord Tennyson wrote, “In spring, a
young man’s fancy lightly turns to
thoughts of love.” This spring, they
can also turn to thoughts of garden-
ing. The St. Charles Community
Organic Garden will offer two free
classes to the public. On Saturday,
March 28 from 2 to 4 p.m.,
Bruce Edwards will demonstrate
“How to Build a Raised Bed Garden.”
Bruce is Urban Harvest director at
the Regional Food Bank. He provides
expertise and services to community
gardens throughout the city. The

class will be held at the Dorothy Day
Center on State Street, one block
south of N.W. 50th and one block east
of Grove, on the southeast corner of
the St. Charles Borromeo church
grounds.

Raised beds have several advan-
tages. There is no back-breaking sod
busting. Construction starts with a
thick layer of cardboard and news-
paper on the ground, which cuts
down drastically on weeding. The
wooden beams placed on top of the
cardboard/newspaper function like a
large container. You can grow more
plants per square inch. If your back-
yard is Oklahoma red dirt, you can

mix your own super rich soil. Wooden
beds are long-lasting, about 15 to 20
years, and suited for small spaces.

On Saturday, April 4 from 2 to
3:30 p.m., Bob Waldrop and Marcus
Evans will offer instruction on “The
Edible Yard.” Cut down on mowing
the lawn and turn your suburban or
city lot into a source for fresh foods.
Whether you cultivate a corner, a
container or an acre, your yard can
provide produce for your table. A
summer  garden  is  a  memory-
making family project.

Bob is president and general
manager of the Oklahoma Food
Cooperative. Marcus is director of the

Dorothy Day Center. Both have
turned their average-size lots into
productive gardens that feed their
families. Their gardens have been
featured in The Oklahoman’s Home
and Gardening Section.

“The Edible Yard” will be held
in Beckmann Hall, St. Charles
Borromeo, 5024 N. Grove, Oklahoma
City (nearest major intersection:
N.W. 50th and MacArthur, Warr
Acres). Child care is available for
both classes for infants 4 months old
to preschool.

For more information, call 887-
1487 or e-mail stcharlesgarden@-
cox.net.

By Monica Knudsen 
For the Sooner Catholic

WASHINGTON D.C. (CNA).-
Obstetrician and gynecologist Sen.
Tom Coburn (R-Oklahoma) has said
that pro-life medical practitioners will
"go to jail" rather than violate their
conscience if the Obama administra-
tion reverses federal conscience pro-
tection rules.

In an interview with
CNSNews.com last week in
Washington, D.C., Sen. Coburn was
asked what he thought would happen
if the administration reverses the pol-
icy.

"I think a lot of us will go to jail,"
he said. "Let's see them prosecute the
first one of us for not doing that."

In the final months of the George
W. Bush Administration, the U.S.
Department of Health and Human
Service (HHS) implemented a con-
science protection regulation reflect-
ing existing federal protections for
healthcare providers' consciences.

The Bush rule protects healthcare
workers at federally funded institu-
tions from being forced to engage in
practices that violate their moral or
religious beliefs, such as performing or
referring for abortions, performing
sterilizations, or giving or receiving
training in such procedures.

The rule also clarifies that con-
science protections also apply to pro-
life institutions.

On Feb. 27, the White House's
Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) announced that it was review-
ing a proposal to modify or lift the
HHS conscience protection regulation
implemented in the final months of
the George W. Bush Administration.

The review is the first step in the
rule's reversal, which would not affect
existing federal conscience protec-
tions.

Explaining the need for the rule in
a December announcement, the HHS
said the regulation would increase
"awareness of and compliance with"
federal law.

The U.S. Conference of Catholic
Bishops has supported the regulation,
citing in a Sept. 12 letter the "growing
hostility on the part of some profes-
sional organizations and advocacy
groups to rights of conscience in health
care" and describing other "undis-
guised hostility to conscience rights."

The Catholic Health Association,
which represents Catholic hospitals,
and the Christian Medical Association
also supported the rule's implementa-
tion.

Coburn Says Medical Community
Would Ignore Health Measure

Epiphany of the Lord Parish and
Father Stephen Bird will lead a
pilgrimage to the Oberammergau
Passion Play in 2010.

Father Bird said that the remain-
ing seats on his trip will have to be
released if not booked this month.

The 10-day tour, May 27 to June 5,
2010, is described as “the best of
Austria and Germany.”

The highlight of the tour will be
the Oberammergau Passion Play that
began in 1633. A terrible plague had
caused great suffering and death in
the small German community. The

people of the town took a vow to
perform the “Play of Suffering, Dying
and Resurrection of Our Lord Jesus
Christ” once every 10 years if God
would spare their community. The
performance in 2010 will mark the
41st  performance  of  this  extra-
ordinary centuries-old tradition.

The total cost per person is $3,795
plus $600 taxes and surcharges. The
pilgrimage will include Vienna, Melk
Abbey, Salzburg, Garmisch and
Rothenburg. For more information,
call 1-800-225-7662 or e-mail peter@-
petersway. com.

Last Chance for Pilgrimage to Germany

Saint Charles Parish to Offer Community Garden Lessons
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Archbishop: Catholic Charities Living Proof Church is Alive 

OKLAHOMA CITY — Arch-
bishop Beltran said health care and
education are “two great areas of
service” the Catholic Church has pro-
vided to the United States through-
out our nation’s history. The arch-
bishop made the comments during
his homily on Feb. 16, while celebrat-
ing Mass at the Cathedral of Our
Lady of Perpetual Help. The Mass
was celebrated prior to the Annual
Recognition Celebration and Annual
Meeting of Catholic Charities of the
Archdiocese of Oklahoma City.

Following Mass, a priest, a
business, several  volunteers, a
parish and a Catholic Charities
employee were recognized for their
strong support of the ministries
undertaken by Catholic Charities.

In his homily, Archbishop
Beltran said “long before there were
government hospitals,” Catholic
hospitals cared for the people of the

United States. This included the poor
and minorities. The archbishop in-
cluded Catholic Charities as serving
in the area of health care and said
the ministry is “built on the teach-
ings of Jesus.”

Through its ministries, Catholic
Charities, the archbishop said,
provides proof the Church is “truly
alive” and is dedicated to the truth
that “God made us to be His people.

“The apostles knew they were
charged by Christ with taking care of
the poor,” Archbishop Beltran said.
He said those who support the work
of Catholic Charities are supporting
the teachings of Christ. The arch-
bishop said while financial support is
good, just as important is “what we
give of ourselves.”

Tim O’Connor, executive director
for Catholic Charities, said often
volunteers and employees find they
receive more than they’ve given
when working with the marginalized
of our society.

“The people we serve teach us
about who God really is,” said
O’Connor. He cited several projects
undertaken by Catholic Charities
that have helped improve the lives
for people who otherwise might be
left out.

The Villanova Apartments in
Lawton were one example O’Connor
named. Catholic Charities partnered
with the city of Lawton and others,
including Mercy Housing, to rebuild
a 68-unit apartment complex in the
city core of Lawton. The people living
there, many with young children,
earn “an average of $8,000 to
$10,000 per year,” O’Connor said.

Another project Catholic
Charities is working on will provide
support to the homeless of Oklahoma
City. A day center for the homeless is
in the works and O’Connor said
Catholic Charities has made “a
strong commitment” to make the
center a reality.

O’Connor said Catholic Charities

continues to reach out across
Oklahoma to help support people in
need. He said Catholic Charities
personnel will be working with Saint
Mary’s Parish in Ardmore to help
the 100 families displaced by the
recent tornado that struck Lone
Grove.

Dave Lopez, president of the
American Fidelity Foundation,
served as guest speaker at the
gathering. He echoed O’Connor’s
comments about the day center for
the homeless.

Catholic Charities, Lopez said,
brings much-needed expertise in
knowing how to deal with the issue
of homelessness so people are served
with dignity and respect. Lopez said
the face of the homeless is changing
in the United States and listed
statistics that show the homeless
today could easily be a child under
the age of 18, a victim of domestic
abuse or a military veteran.

By Ray Dyer
The Sooner Catholic

Catholic Charities
Supporters
Honored 

The people and organizations
recognized for their dedication and
support of Catholic Charities in the
Archdiocese of Oklahoma City at the
Annual Recognition Celebration and
Meeting would certainly seem to live
up to the standards established in the
organization’s mission statement: “To
put into practice gospel values of
justice, love, compassion and hope
through service, empowerment and
advocacy.”

Those recognized freely give their
time, their talent and their treasure to
help Catholic Charities help those,
who for whatever reasons, are having
difficulties in their lives.

The meeting was held Feb. 16 in
the Connor Center on the campus of
the Cathedral of Our Lady of
Perpetual Help. It followed Mass cele-
brated by Archbishop Beltran and
attracted several hundred supporters,
including Catholics and non-
Catholics.

Robert G. Dolan Jr. was named
the recipient of the 2008
Archbishop Eusebius J. Beltran
Award.

This award was created in 1998
and is presented to the Catholic lay

person who has made a significant
contribution to improving the qual-
ity of life in Oklahoma through out-
standing leadership and communi-
ty service.

Dolan is described as “a man of

strong faith” whose vocation of
service to church and community is
exceptional. A native of St. Louis,
Mo., Dolan arrived in Oklahoma
City in 1974 and retired as senior
vice president of Fleming
Companies in 1996.

Dolan has been an active board
member of Birth Choice of
Oklahoma and the Sisters of
Benedict. He has also served as
both a board member and president
of the Executive Service Corp of
Central Oklahoma, the Catholic
Foundation and Catholic Charities
of the Archdiocese of Oklahoma
City.

As a member of Christ the King
Church, he has also served on the
Parish Council, the Board of
Education for Bishop McGuinness
High School and is currently serv-
ing as chairman of the corporation
to be formed by Catholic Charities
to bring a day center for the home-
less to Oklahoma City.

Married to Susan Dolan for 45
years, the Dolans are parents of
three children and 12 grandchil-
dren.

Molly Bernard and Tim O’Connor, right, present Robert Dolan with his award.
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Gloria Reich was named 2008 Volunteer of the Year.
A volunteer in the Saint Vincent de Paul Society Downtown Conference,

Reich also contributes her time, expertise and money to the Adopt a Family
Christmas program sponsored by Catholic Charities. She is an active member
of Saint Andrew Parish in Moore.

Catholic Charities Awards

Connelly Paving Company was named 2008 Corporation of the Year.
Over the past three years, Jim Connelly Jr. has donated the services of his

company to pave a children’s play area and parking lot for families living at
Catholic Charities Casa Maria Apartments. After originally committing to
donate asphalt to pave the lot, he upgraded his offer to a concrete surface.

Connelly and his wife, Vickie, are longtime major benefactors and believe
in sharing their good fortune with others, especially single mothers and their
children.

Father Stephen J. Bird was the recipient of the 2008 Clergy of the Year
Award.

Father Bird is described as a “longtime friend and supporter of Catholic
Charities.” In 1997, as pastor of Saint Patrick Church, Father Bird worked
alongside Catholic Charities in establishing the first Parish Nurse Program,
now known as Faith Community Nursing. He has continued to help support the
establishment of this ministry in other parishes. More recently, Father Bird
worked with Epiphany Parish Women’s Club to raise more than $7,000 to be
used for direct assistance to families ministered to by Catholic Charities.

Saint Philip Neri Parish in Midwest City was named the 2008 Parish
Organization of the Year.

Through the leadership of its Social Action Committee and under the
leadership of Norm Mejstrik, Saint Philip Neri Parish has adopted Catholic
Charities’ HOPE Project. The project, coordinated by Toni Schones, identifies
and requests specific items for children and their parents throughout the year.
In August that may mean helping with school supplies. In November it may be
finding a coat for a child.

Rebecca David was named 2008 Servant Leader of the Year.
An employee of Catholic Charities, David serves as finance director and

is considered “well-versed in government regulations, accounting principles
and agency programs.”

Tim O’Connor, executive director of Catholic Charities, said David’s abil-
ity to communicate and clearly explain procedures to other staff members
and her willingness to respond to last-minute requests demonstrate her
servant leadership qualities.

O’Connor and Bernard present Father Stephen Bird with his award.

Bernard and O’Connor present Toni Schones and Norm Mejstrik with Saint
Philip Neri’s award.

O’Connor and Bernard present Rebecca David with her award.

O’Connor and Bernard present Jim Connelly Jr. and his son, Andy, with the
Corporation of the Year award.

O’Connor and Bernard present Gloria Reich with her award.
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Mount Outreach Brings Resources to Hispanic Community
OKLAHOMA CITY — On Feb. 5,

El  Centro  de  Oportunidades
at Mount St. Mary High School
partnered with local community
organizations to educate its students
on available services and programs.
El Centro de Oportunidades is an
outreach program sponsored and
held at Mount St. Mary Catholic
High School. This program offers
English as a second language, GED
and citizenship evening classes to
the Hispanic community.

“Our goal is to provide students
with resources and information that
may not be accessible in their normal
daily routine,” said Maria Osorio,
program director. “We are always
looking for ways to expand our
program by partnering with local
community organizations that offer
goods and services that our students
may not know about. Our students
feel safe at Mount St. Mary High
School and by bringing resources to
them, we strengthen their trust in
our commitment to help them.”

The students listened to a pre-

sentation given by Norah Chandler
of The Latino Agency. Chandler said
that her agency offers numerous
services that can benefit their fami-
lies. These services include HIV test-
ing, tobacco counseling and free child

car seat education and services. In
addition, Ted Anderson, representing
Angel Food Ministries, offered their
package program that provides
family meals at a reduced cost.
Margie Solis of Catholic Charities

Immigration Services explained the
necessary details of immigration law
and the services that Catholic
Charities provide in this area.

Osorio said the program is
designed to not only give students
academic skills, but to educate them
about community resources.

“Not only do we want to teach
the basic necessities of ESL, GED
and citizenship to the Hispanic
community, but we want to educate
them on the opportunities, goods and
services that will improve the quality
of life for them and their children,”
she said. “I am exited about the level
of participation that we have received
in this program. It is focused on help-
ing the Hispanic population as we
work together to make a difference in
the global community.”

Currently, El Centro de Oportu-
nidades at Mount St. Mary has an
enrollment of 125 students. This
is the largest ongoing outreach
program in Oklahoma City for the
Hispanic community.

Maria Osorio stands with students in the Mount’s outreach program.

Rite of Election
continued from page 1

cally welcomed the Catechumens
and Candidates.

“I wish to welcome all of you
and to thank you for your response
to God Who is calling all of us to
live the fullness of the Catholic
faith,” the archbishop said.

He told the Catechumens and
Candidates they are accepting the
fact that God has created us in His
image and likeness and that He
has a plan for our eternal life with
Him.

“Jesus speaks to us through the
Scriptures and through the Church.
In  this way, He guides us and leads
us daily on the journey of life,”
Archbishop Beltran said. “Today, in
the First Reading, we heard Saint
Paul reveal the plan of God for us
by pinpointing our true identity.
On behalf of all of us, he said: “Our
citizenship is in heaven and from it
we also await our Savior, the Lord
Jesus Christ.” (Phil 3:20)

“What does it mean that we are
citizens of heaven? It means that
we have been created by God in His
own Image and Likeness. He made
us out of love and in such a way
that we can receive His love and
love Him in return. By the grace
and mercy of God we are called, we
are elected to share life in love with
God forever. This sharing of life
with God begins in faith when we
are baptized. It is fulfilled perfectly
and completely when we stand face
to face with Him forever in heaven.

Saint John the Apostle says:
“Behold what manner of love God
our Father bestows on us that we
are called children of God. (1 John
3:1) This gift, surpassing all other
gifts, is the fact that God calls
a human being His child and a
human  being  can  call  God  his
Father!”

(Archbishop Beltran’s entire
homily can be found at www.
soonercatholic.org).

Archbishop Beltran welcomes a Catechumen during the Rite of Election.
Sooner Catholic Photo 
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March 8, 2009

My dear Brothers and Sisters in
Christ:

I am very pleased that once
again, I am able to present an
audited report of the income and
expenditures of the Archdiocese of
Oklahoma City for the previous fis-
cal year. I hope you will find this
report informative and an indica-
tion of my sincere desire to share
with you the details of the finances
of the Church of our Archdiocese.

I am extremely grateful to our
Archdiocesan Finance Council and
our Business Office which assist
me in this necessary task of over-
seeing archdiocesan finances.
Above all, I am most grateful
to  you, the  people  of  the  Archdiocese  of  Oklahoma  City, whose
contributions support the mission and needs of the Church here in
central and western Oklahoma and the Panhandle.

Financing the mission and works of the Church is not principally a
monetary reality. It is an act of faith. This faith and generosity, rooted
in prayer, enable us to be evangelizers and proclaimers of the Good
News of Jesus. The Holy Spirit does indeed continue to be present and
active in our Archdiocese. For this reason, we have much for which to be
grateful.

I hope this audited financial report will inspire you to a deeper
appreciation of the life of our local Archdiocese, your Archdiocese, and
that your generosity and prayers will be renewed in support of all our
ministries.

With an assurance of prayers, I ask Almighty God to bless you most
abundantly and I remain

Gratefully yours in Christ,

Most Reverend Eusebius J. Beltran
Archbishop of Oklahoma City

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Post Office Box 32180
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73123

405/721/5651

2008 Financial Audit of
the Archdiocese of

Oklahoma City
531 Couch Drive, Suite 200

Oklahoma City, OK 73102-2251
(405) 239-7961

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial
position of Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds (the
“Pastoral Office”), as described in Note A, as of June 30, 2008, and
the related statements of activities, comprehensive income, and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Pastoral Office’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. The 2007 prior year sum-
marized comparative information has been derived from the Pastoral
Office’s June 30, 2007 financial statements, and in our report dated
December 11, 2007, we expressed a qualified opinion on those finan-
cial statements due to matters in the second following paragraph.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Pastoral Office’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As more fully described in Note E to the accompanying financial
statements, the statement of financial position reflects some, but not
all, land, buildings, and equipment (properties) owned by the
Pastoral Office. In addition, the carrying amounts of certain proper-
ties are not recorded at cost or fair value at the date of gift and no
provisions for depreciation or impairment, if any, have been made.
Due to the nature of the Pastoral Office’s records, we were unable to
satisfy ourselves as to the carrying amounts of such properties.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters discussed in
the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above
of the Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Pastoral
Office at June 20, 2008, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Unites States of America.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
January 20, 2009

Independent Auditors Report
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Notes to Financial Statements 
Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds

June 30, 2008
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations: Archdiocese of Oklahoma City (the “Archdio-
cese”) is a nonprofit organization that serves the parishes and parishioners
of the Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Oklahoma City. The Archdiocese
includes 46 counties and over 100 parishes and missions located throughout
central and western Oklahoma. The Archdiocese charges each parish an
annual assessment and conducts annual development fund drives through
the parishes in order to fund operations. Services provided by the
Archdiocese include various social services, Catholic communications,
priests’ support, and information about the Catholic faith.

Basis of Financial Statements: The accompanying financial state-
ments include the accounts and funds of the Pastoral Office of the
Archdiocese and certain budgeted departments and offices over which the
Pastoral Office has accounting and reporting responsibility (collectively, the
“Pastoral Office”). The Archdiocese has certain other Archdiocesan agencies,
parishes and organizations which operate within the Archdiocese; however,
these organizations do not operate within the Pastoral Office. Accordingly,
the accounts of these other agencies, parishes and organizations have not
been included with the Pastoral Office. As a result, the accompanying
financial statements are not intended to present the consolidated financial
position and changes in net assets of the Archdiocese as a whole.

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year sum-
marized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunc-
tion with the Pastoral Office’s financial statements for 2007 from which the
summarized information was derived.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: Financial instruments which poten-
tially subject the Pastoral Office to concentrations of credit risk consists of
cash, investment in securities (see Note B) and unsecured accounts, contri-
butions, and notes receivable (see Note D). From time to time the Pastoral
Office maintains cash balances in excess of federal deposit insurance corpo-
ration (“FDIC”) limits. Subsequent to June 30, 2008, FDIC limits were
increased whereby all traditional type deposit accounts are insured up to
$250,000 (through December 31, 2009). Additionally, banks may participate
in the FDIC’s Transaction Account Guarantee Program (the “TAG Program”)
whereby non-interest bearing transaction accounts are 100 percent
guaranteed by the FDIC through December 31, 2009. Coverage under the
TAG Program is in addition to coverage provided to traditional type deposit
accounts. Considering the increased FDIC limits and the TAG Program, as of
June 30, 2008, all of the Pastoral Office’s cash balances would have been
covered except for approximately $182,000 which was in excess of the
$250,000 limit for interest bearing accounts.

The Pastoral Office’s accounts receivable are unsecured and relate to
assessments to parishes throughout central and western Oklahoma.
Contributions receivable are unsecured and are due from various individuals
in the parishes served by the Pastoral Office. Credit losses are provided
based on periodic assessments of outstanding receivables, particularly those
accounts which are past due, as well as historical trends related to the
collection of contributions receivable. As of June 30, 2008, allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable and contributions receivable were $3,565,867
and $153,968, respectively, and as of June 30, 2007 were $3,201,453 and
$195,087, respectively. All contributions and accounts receivable at June 30,
2008 and 2007 are expected to be collected in one year, with the exception of
accounts receivable from All Saints Catholic School, Inc., which have no spec-

ified repayment terms and are fully reserved in the statement of financial
position (Note H).

The Pastoral Office makes loans to parishes throughout central and
western Oklahoma based on an evaluation of each parish’s financial condi-
tion and other factors. Except as noted in Note D, the loans are generally
unsecured. The Pastoral Office’s periodic evaluation of credit losses is based
on known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may
affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated value of the underlying
collateral, if any, and current economic conditions. The Pastoral Office’s peri-
odic assessments of accounts, notes and credit loss provision are based on the
Pastoral Office’s best estimates of amounts which may not be recoverable.

Contributions Payable: Contributions payable consists of uncondi-
tional amounts awarded, but not paid, to recipients. The contributions
payable have no formal payment terms and are reduced by a discount of
$38,520 and $3,143 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Net Assets: Net assets are classified into three categories: unrestricted
net assets which have no donor-imposed restrictions, temporarily restricted
net assets which have donor-imposed restrictions that will expire in the
future, and permanently restricted net assets which have donor-imposed
restrictions which do not expire.

Revenue Recognition: The Pastoral Office recognizes contributions,
including unconditional promises to give, as support in the period received.
The Pastoral Office records contributions received as permanently restricted,
temporarily restricted, or unrestricted net assets based on donor-imposed
restrictions, if any. Assessment and fee income is recognized ratably over the
period for which the related assessments and fees relate, which generally
corresponds with Pastoral Office’s fiscal year. Insurance premiums received
by the Pastoral Office from the insured parishes and organizations are
recognized evenly over the contract period and are shown net of premiums
paid to third parties for reinsurance coverage.

Collections for the Archdiocesan Development Fund and assessments for
Central Archdiocesan Operations are generally received in advance of their
subsequent disbursement. Interest earned on these excess funds between the
time of receipt and disbursement is recorded as unrestricted revenue.

Expiration of Donor-Imposed Restrictions: The expiration of donor-
imposed restrictions on contributions or on endowment income is recognized
in the year in which the restriction expires, and at that time, the related
resources are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. Restrictions expire when
the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Contributions of land,
buildings, and equipment without donor stipulations concerning the use
of such assets are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets.
Contributions of cash or other assets to be used to acquire land, buildings,
and equipment without such donor stipulations are reported as increases in
temporarily restricted net assets. Restrictions are considered to be released
at the time of acquisition.

Temporarily restricted contributions are recorded in the year the contri-
bution or unconditional pledge is received. Net assets are released from
donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or
by occurrence of events specified by the donors or by the change of restric-
tions specified by the donors. The amount of net assets identified as released
from donor restrictions includes any amount released whether received in
the current or prior fiscal years.

Income Taxes: The Archdiocese, as an agency and/or instrumentality of
the United States Catholic Conference, is exempt from federal and state
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

continued on page 17
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Notes
continued from page 16

Investments: All investments received by gift or bequest are recorded at
fair value in the statement of financial position on the date received. If fair
value is not determinable on the date received, the asset received by gift or
bequest is recorded at nominal value. Investments in corporate stocks and
bonds are marked to market at year end in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 124, Accounting for Certain
Investments Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations. Investments in real estate
and commercial properties are carried at the value initially recorded unless
there has been an indication of either (a) impairment of value considered to
be other than temporary, which would result in a write-down to fair value or
(b) increased market value, which would result in a write-up to fair value.

Unrestricted investment income, including investment gains and losses,
are recorded as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets. Investment
income is recorded as temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the gift
restrict the use of the income. Permanently restricted net assets are
increased if the terms of the gift that gave rise to the investment requires the
investment income to be added to the principal of the endowment.

Self Insurance Plan: The Pastoral Office has a self-insured plan (the
“Plan”) to serve the property and casualty and health and accident insurance
needs of the Archdiocese and its parishes and organizations (collectively, the
“Insured Organizations”). Premiums received by the Pastoral Office from the
Insured Organizations are recognized evenly over the contract period and
are shown net of premiums paid to third parties for reinsurance coverage.
Unearned insurance premiums representing the portion of the premiums
applicable to the unexpired period of the contract are included with liabili-
ties in the accompanying statement of financial position. A plan administra-
tor has been retained to oversee the administration of the Plan based upon
guidelines established by the Pastoral Office. The Plan consists of the
following coverages:

$1,059,677

895,146

948,716
55,166,032
20,490,968
36,649,181

75,274
$115,284,994

$656,243
981,733

23,585,942
1,308,050

283,213

2,679,919
8,925,308

38,420,408

39,870,816
(4,042,688)

36,649,181
72,477,309

727,847
3,659,430

76,864,586
$115,284,994

Assets
Cash 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $3,565,867 and
$3,201,453 at June 30, 2008 and 2007.
Contributions receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts $153,968 and 
$195,087 at June 30, 2008 and 2007
Investments 
Notes receivable 
Land, buildings, and equipment 
Other
Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Contributions payable, net of discount 
Investments managed for related parties 
Accrued insurance claims 
Bank borrowings 
Debt guarantee, net of discount of           

$358,704 and $492,665 at June, 2008 
and 2007, respectively

Accrued pension benefit cost 
Total liabilities 

Net assets:
Unrestricted:

Designated and operating 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Net investment in property and
equipment and other

Total unrestricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 
Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 
See accompanying notes.

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City
Pastoral Office Funds

Statements of Financial Position
June 30

2008           2007

2,716,237

494,861 

971,820 
59,788,909 
18,360,818 
42,352,545 

72,170 
$124,757,360

$ 1,075,604 
1,208,305 

27,113,670 
2,516,275 
2,000,000

2,366,975 
9,234,642 

45,515,471 

36,198,496
(3,631,574)

42,352,545
74,919,467

707,734
3,614,688

79,241,889
$124,757,360

Property and Casualty: Covers claims related to property,
general liability, professional liability, crime, automobile, boiler
and machinery, workers’ compensation, and inland marine. The
plan administrator utilizes a third party to process and administer
claims under the Plan. The Insured Organizations are billed pre-
miums annually by the plan administrator. As claims are incurred,
the Plan is required to pay amounts of such claims up to the
deductibles of $125,000 on property and casualty claims, $50,000
in general liability claims, and $50,000 on workers’ compensation
claims. Eligible claims in excess of the deductibles are covered by
various reinsurance policies.

Health and Accident: Covers medical expenses of the
covered employees of the Insured Organizations based upon the
terms established by the Archdiocese under the Health and
Accident Benefit Plan. The plan administrator utilizes a third
party to process and administer claims under the Plan. The In-
sured Organizations are billed monthly by the plan administrator
for their employees’ participation in the Plan. The terms of the
Plan require the claimant to pay a deductible of $500 (in network)
or $1,000 (out of network) each plan year (the claimant’s deduc-
tible) and 20 percent (in network) or 40 percent (out of network) of
the remaining difference of each eligible claim (the claimant’s coin-
surance percent) up to a maximum coinsurance claim of $10,000.
The claimant’s deductible and coinsurance percent vary, as previ-
ously described, depending on the claimant’s insurance elections.
The Plan pays for the remaining 80 percent or 60 percent of eligi-
ble claims between the claimant;s deductible and the maximum
coinsurance claim amount of $10,000. The amounts of an eligible

claim exceeding $10,000 are paid 100 percent by the Plan up to a
maximum eligible claim of $100,000 for calendar year 2007 and
$125,000 for calendar year 2008. The amounts of eligible claims ex-
ceeding $100,000 for calendar year 2007 and $125,000 for calendar
year 2008 are paid 100 percent by reinsurance companies.

As discussed above the Pastoral Office enters into certain reinsurance con-
tracts in an effort to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other
events that cause unfavorable underwriting results. Reinsurance contracts do
not relieve the Pastoral Office from its obligation to policyholders. Failure of
reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Pastoral

continued on page 19



18 Sooner Catholic    March 8, 2009●●

Revenues, gains and other support:
Contributions and collections:

Archdiocesan Development Fund 
Assessment for Central Archdiocesan Operations 
Fees and revenues of budgeted departments and offices
Pilgrimage 
Priest Medical collections
NCMO Grant     
Property additions by Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School
Bequests and other 

Insurance premiums earned (net of premiums ceded of $2,355,462 in 2008 and $2,605,002 in 2007)
Oil, gas, and royalty income 
Interest and dividend income:

Investments 
Notes receivable 

Gains on investments 
Other income 

Net assets released from restrictions 
Total revenues, gains (losses), and other support 
Expenses:
Budgeted departments and offices:

Pastoral Center 
Business Office 
Safe Environment
Archdiocesan newspaper (Sooner Catholic) 
Office of Christian Education 
Youth Ministry 
Office of Family Life 
Hispanic Ministry 
Our Lady of Guadalupe 
Office of Planning, Stewardship, and Development 
Ministry to Priests, Permanent Deacons and Clergy Education
Hospital Ministry 
Tribunal 
Office of Worship and Spiritual Life 
National Conference of Catholic Bishops – United States Catholic Conference
Priests’ welfare, retirement, and disability 
Property taxes and maintenance 
Other 

Total budgeted departments and offices 
Sponsored programs and other subsidies:

Insurance claims and claims settlement expense
(net of reinsurance recoveries of $166,480 in 2008 and $11,080 in 2007)

Administrative costs of self-insurance plan 
Pilgrimage
Micatokla – Mission in Guatemala 
Campus Ministry 
Ecumenical & Interreligous
Contributions made to others 
NCMO distribution
Seminarian programs 
Net periodic pension benefit cost 
Provision for (reversal of) debt guarantee 
Amortization of discount on debt guarantee
PDLF investment pool interest expense
Other 

Total sponsored programs and other subsidies 
Loss on sale of assets
Total expenses 
Change in net assets before other comprehensive income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Decrease in minimum pension liability
Adjustments related to change in accounting:

Reduction of minimun pension liability adjustment
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net actuarial loss

Change in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year (See accompanying notes.)

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds
Statements of Activities, Comprehensive Loss and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2008 (Summarized totals for year ended June 30, 2007)

$3,053,999 
1,396,484 
1,404,426

-
-
- 

5,536,681 
1,073,467 
5,063,554 

368,013

1,544,597 
803,105

(2,065,805) 
392,023 

18,570,544 
286,138 

18,856,682 

1,096,551 
764,699 
70,769 

421,060 
476,062 
452,679 
211,073 
210,170 
269,019 
127,810 
160,581 
193,198 
171,852 
130,488 
39,260 
75,001 

103,628 
804

4,974,704 

$6,537,563
401,127
116,703
72,000

100,485
18,845

1,674,094
26,000

547,706
1,050,819
(154,651)

133,961
608,214
680,620

11,813,486
37,448

16,825,638
2,031,044

202,384
208,730

-
-
-
-

2,442,158
72,477,309

$74,919,467

$- 
- 
- 

109,256
101,836
26,000 

- 
17,697

- 
-

15,288
- 

(4,052)
- 

266,025
(286,138)
(20,113)

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

$- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
-
- 

(20,113)
- 
- 
-
-
- 
-

(20,113)
727,847

$707,734

$- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

47,956
- 

(92,698)
- 

(44,742)
- 

(44,742)

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

$-
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
-
- 
- 

(44,742)  
-
-
-
- 
-
-

(44,742)
3,659,430

$3,614,688

$2,990,065
1,284,375
1,447,805

34,882
105,102
26,000

3,061,577
910,178

4,592,493
310,479

1,268,180
1,181,766
5,540,775

487,278
23,240,955

-
23,240,955

987,819
761,823
77,762

408,811
446,578
404,279 
216,263
207,728
225,025
140,524
193,205 
206,693
187,136
188,460
43,420

179,752
82,576
33,059

4,990,913

$4,679,965 
344,524
59,050
72,000

102,500
18,544

1,422,255
26,000

519,271
1,142,573

(28,457)
151,726
734,964
730,667

9,975,582
222,054 

15,188,549
8,052,406

-
-

711,355
1,350,806

(1,239,853)
(2,802,835)

6,071,879
70,792,707

$76,864,586

$3,053,999
1,396,484
1,404,426

109,256
101,836
26,000

5,536,681
1,091,164
5,063,554

368,013

1,607,841
803,105

(2,162,555)
392,023

18,791,827
-

18,791,827

1,096,551
764,699
70,769

421,060
476,062
452,679
211,073
210,170
269,019
127,810
160,581
193,198
171,852
130,488
39,260
75,001

103,628
804

4,974,704

$6,537,563
401,127
116,703
72,000

100,485
18,845

1,674,094
26,000

547,706
1,050,819
(154,651)

133,961
608,214
680,620

11,813,486
37,448

16,825,638
1,966,189

202,384
208,730

-
-
-
-

2,377,303
76,864,586

$79,241,889

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted 

2008
Total 

2007
Total 



Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the 2007 financial statements
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

NOTE B--INVESTMENTS
Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:

(A) The investment pool represents the Pastoral Office’s proportionate
share of an investment pool which is the custodial responsibility of The
Catholic Foundation of Oklahoma, Inc. (the “Foundation”). Pooled fund invest-
ments are held and managed by a trust company affiliated with a major
regional bank which has investment authority over the investment transac-
tions subject to investment policies which are established and periodically
updated by the Board of Directors of the Foundation.

(B) Investments held by investment managers consist of funds deposited
with professional investment managers which have discretionary investment
authority over investment transactions subject to investment policies which

continued on page 20

2,377,303

2,162,555

(5,536,681)
(154,651)

133,961
1,050,819

37,448
(411,114)

400,285
(23,104)
419,361
226,572

1,208,254
(292,254)

(330,371)
1,268,354

$(3,439,729)
5,569,879

(37,660,474)
30,875,042

(204,131)
-

3,104
(4,856,309)

3,527,728
1,716,787
5,244,515
1,656,560
1,059,677
2,716,237

$732,139
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continued from page 17
Office; consequently allowances may be established for any amounts deemed
uncollectible (none as of June 30, 2008 or 2007).

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each financial instrument:

Notes

$ 6,071,879

(5,540,775)

(3,061,577)
(28,457)
151,726

1,142,573
222,054

1,980,527

8,670
(19,345)

(182,227)
208,654
(16,079)

(415,543)

(325,185)
196,895

$(5,646,026)
3,554,009

(29,029,764)
27,174,406

(128,570)
5,229
5,901

(4,064,815)

3,840,465
(366,919)
3,473,546
(394,374)
1,454,051
1,059,677

$730,139

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City
Pastoral Office Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net 

cash provided by operating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 
Contributions of property from Bishop McGuinness 

Catholic High School 
Provisions for (reversal of) debt guarantee  
Amortization of discount on debt guarantee
Net periodic pension cost 
Losses on disposals of equipment 
Other comprehensive (income) loss 
Net change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts recivable, net of increase in allowance for

doubtful accounts of $364,414 in 2008
and $390,543 in 2007

Contributions receivable
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Contributions payable
Accrued insurance claims
Debt guarantee

Accured pension benefit cost, net of amounts included 
in other comprehensive income
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing Activities
Advances for notes receivable 
Collections on notes receivable 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds from sales of investments 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from disposals of equipment 
Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing Activities
Investments managed for related parties (net)
Net repayments of bank borrowings 
Net Cash provided by (used in) Financing Activites
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year 
Cash at end of year 
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest 
See accompanying notes.

Year ended June 30

2007

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, contributions
receivable and payable, and accounts payable and accrued liabili-
ties (including accrued insurance claims) — the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short maturity.
Investments — the fair value for investments in securities is
determined based upon quoted market values for marketable secu-
rities. Fair value for certificates of deposit is determined by using
discounted cash flow analyses based on current market rates for
deposits with similar remaining maturities. Fair value for real
estate is determined primarily based upon independent appraisals
or contractual sales prices. The liability for the fair value of invest-
ments managed for related parties are determined in the same
manner as other investments and allocated to each entity in a pro-
rata amount.
Notes receivable — the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the notes receivable carrying a variable rate of interest that
is indexed to the two-year U.S. Treasury Notes.
Bank borrowings — the carrying amount approximates fair value
due to the borrowings carrying a variable rate of interest.
Debt guarantee — the fair value is determined by calculating the
present value of principal and interest payments to be made on
behalf of the borrower through December 2013. The carrying
amount approximates fair value.

2008

Money funds 
Corporate bonds and notes 
Certificate of deposet
Government debt securities 
Equity securities 
Real estate 
Other 
Total investments 

2007
Investment

Pool  (A)

Held by
Investment

Managers  (B) Other

$593,714
-
- 

1,620,017
4,540,928

- 
49,600

$6,804,259

$2,639,006
6,773,263

92,510
6,571,865

29,638,533
-
- 

$45,715,177

$553,762
- 

215,948
- 
- 

1,876,886
-

$2,646,596

$3,786,482
6,773,263

308,458
8,191,882

34,179,461
1,876,886

49,600
$55,166,032

Total

Money funds 
Corporate bonds and notes 
Certificate of deposet
Government debt securities 
Equity securities 
Real estate 
Other 
Total investments 

2008
Investment

Pool  (A)

Held by
Investment

Managers  (B) Other

$964,018
-
- 

1,694,179
4,592,158

- 
23,407

$7,273,762

$6,772,746
8,973,465

-
10,548,329
25,273,434

-
-

$51,567,974

$221,264
- 

225,909
- 
- 

500,000
-

$947,173

$7,958,028
8,973,465

225,909
12,242,508
29,865,592

500,000
23,407

$59,788,909

Total
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are established and periodically updated by the Pastoral Office.
The Pastoral Office has investments in various investment securities,

which in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate,
credit and overall market volatility risks.

Subsequent to year-end, the credit and liquidity crisis in the United
States and throughout the global financial system has resulted in sub-
stantial volatility in financial markets and the banking system. These and
other economic events have had a significant adverse impact on invest-
ment portfolios. As a result, the Pastoral Office’s investments have likely
incurred a significant decline in fair value since June 30, 2008.

NOTE C--RELATED PARTIES
Investments include investments managed for related parties. The

Pastoral Office, in a fiduciary capacity, manages the following investments
for parties associated with the Archdiocese as of June 30:

(A) PDLF is an investment pool of
funds deposited by the Pastoral Office
and other members of the Archdiocese.
PDLF was established to provide financ-
ing to defined members of the
Archdiocese and is administered by the
Pastoral Office and a third-party admin-
istrator. Funds deposited to PDLF earn
interest at a rate based on the monthly
average rate of two-year U.S. Treasury
Notes plus 0.25 percent (2.81 percent at
June 30, 2008), and loans (Note D) from
PDLF bear interest at a floating rate
adjusted monthly based on the average
rate of two-year U.S. Treasury Notes
plus 1.25 percent (3.81 percent at June
30, 2008). The policy of PDLF is to limit
outstanding loans to a range of approxi-
mately 75 percent to 90 percent of the
total PDLF assets with the remaining
assets being invested in cash or equity,
fixed income securities.

Deposits to PDLF are guaranteed by
the Pastoral Office. As of June 30, 2008
and 2007, PDLF had assets of
$29,683,277 and $25,633,318, respec-
tively, consisting of funds deposited by
the Pastoral Office and other members
of the Archdiocese, and had loans out-
standing to members of the Archdiocese
of $15,562,645 and $19,315,303, respec-
tively (Note) 

Mortgage note from St. Ann’s Home, Inc. that
provides for monthly payments of $9,353, includ-
ing interest equal to PDLF loans (Note C) (effec-
tive rate of 3.81 percent as of June 30, 2008), until
April 2025.
Note receivable from St.Ann’s Retirement Village,
Inc. (“St. Ann’s”) that provides for monthly pay-
ments of $20,873, including interest equal to the
two-year Treasury note rate plus 1.25 percent
(effective rate of 6.17 percent as of June 30, 2007),
until February 2009. Paid in full during 2008.
Note receivable from Bishop McGuinness High
School (“BMHS”) for the construction of the Gym
that provides for monthly interest payments
equal to the two-year Treasury note rate plus
1.25 percent (effective rate of 3.81 percent as of
June 30, 2008), until October 2009.
Notes receivable from member parishes with
balances outstanding as of June 30, 2008 ranging
in amounts from approximately $12,000 to
$307,000, with interest rates of 0 percent and
maturities in installments through January 2016.
Notes receivable from member parishes related
to borrowings from PDLF (Note C) maturing at
various dates through 2029.

continued on page 21

Archdiocesan Parish Deposit 
and Loan Fund (“PDLF”) (A)
Associated Catholic Charities
Resurrection Cemetery, Inc.
St. Ann’s Home, Inc.
Bishop McGuinness

2007

$15,854,263
998,524

5,062,947
606,089

1,064,119
$23,585,942

2008

$19,610,823
944,054

4,945,202
585,544

1,028,047
$27,113,670

Seminary Burses Fund (A) 
Joseph Danne Fund (B) 
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund (C):

Operating activity 
Archdiocesan Pastoral Center 
Archbishop’s residence 
Our Lady of Victory 
(for maternity services) 
Mount St. Mary High School 
Catholic school support 
Tuition for Bombing Survivors 
Disaster education 
Disaster relief 
Pastoral ministry 
Crested Butte 
Salatka & Zagar
Elderly support 
Youth camp 

Total Archdiocesan Endowment Fund 
St. Joseph’s Children’s Fund (D) 
Land, Buildings, and Equipment Fund 
Operating Fund:

Self-insurance fund
Retirement benefits 

Total Operating Fund 
Total net assets

$ – 
– 

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
–
– 
– 
– 
–
– 
– 
–  

–  
(3,631,574) 
(3,631,574)

$(3,631,574) 

$ – 
– 

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
–

– 
42,352,545

– 
– 
–

$42,352,545

$ –
–

–
–
–

–
–

260,988
322,328

– 
– 

13,165
– 

11,384
99,869

–
707,734

– 
– 

–
–
– 

$707,734

$ 782,841
2,633,984

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 

197,863  
– 
– 
– 
– 

197,863
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 

$3,614,688

$ 4,005,730
3,613,438

18,016,452
3,046,566
1,704,503

619,517
2,157,632
1,931,805

322,328
12,183
2,637

211,028
49,156
11,384
99,869

458,797
28,643,857
3,719,803

42,352,545

2,352,334
(5,445,818)
(3,093,484)

$79,241,889

Designated
and

Operating

Accumulated
Other

Compre- 
hensive Loss

Net
Investment

in Land,
Buildings &
Equipment

Tempo-
rarily

Restricted

Perma-
nently

Restricted Total

NOTE G — NET ASSETS 2008

$3,222,889
979,454

18,016,452
3,046,566
1,704,503

619,517
2,157,632
1,670,817

–
12,183
2,637

–
49,156

–
–

458,797
27,738,260
3,719,803

–

2,352,334
(1,814,244)

538,090
$36,198,496

2008 

$279,518

-

1,850,000

668,655

15,562,645
$18,360,818

2007 

$474,426 

283,213 

-

418,026

19,315,303
$20,490,968 

Unrestricted
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Based on an analysis of notes receivable, management does not believe that

an allowance for uncollectible notes is necessary as of June 30, 2008 or 2007.
NOTE E--LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT
All land, buildings, and equipment (properties) are not recorded as required

by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Historically, the accounts of the Pastoral Office have reflected some, but not all,
properties owned by the Pastoral Office. The carrying amounts of the Pastoral
Center and Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School reflect replacement
values as determined as of December 31, 1967 plus the historical cost of addi-
tions to the buildings subsequent to 1967. Although other recorded properties
are stated at cost, no provisions have been made for depreciation or impairment,
if any, because detail records are not sufficiently comprehensive to support the
required computations. Accordingly, the effects on the financial statements can-
not be determined; however, the effects are believed to be material. Land, build-
ings, and equipment recorded consist of the following as of June 30:

NOTE F--BANK BORROWINGS
The Pastoral Office has a revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”) with a

bank that provides for borrowings up to $6,650,000 through October 31, 2009.
Outstanding borrowings under the Revolver will bear interest at the Two-Year
Treasury Note Constant Maturity index plus 1 percent. The Pastoral Office is
required to make monthly payments of accrued interest with all outstanding
borrowings due in October 2009. The proceeds of the Revolver are limited in use
with $650,000 for St. Ann’s Retirement Center, $4,000,000 for St. Katharine
Drexel Project, and $2,000,000 for Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School
Project. The Revolver contains several financial covenants which require,
among other things (a) maintenance of $20 million of unrestricted and unen-
cumbered liquid net assets, (b) maintenance of $30 million of unrestricted net
assets, and (c) limitation to $50 million of aggregate funded and contingent
debt.

NOTE G--NET ASSETS
(A) The Seminary Burses Fund provides financial resources for seminari-

ans. Earnings in excess of disbursements are retained in the fund.
(B) The Joseph Danne Fund provides education and financial support to

orphans, to help build parochial schools in needy parishes, and to provide
interest-free loans to poor parishes for the purpose of constructing churches.
The original bequest provided for the principal of the fund to remain intact and
50 percent of the earnings to be reinvested to become corpus of the Joseph
Danne Foundation endowment. The remaining 50 percent of earnings is to be
used for charitable purposes at the discretion of the Archbishop.

(C) The Pastoral Office established the Archdiocesan Endowment Fund to
meet anticipated long-term needs of the Pastoral Office.To the extent that unre-
stricted net assets are not required to meet the operating or other financial

needs of the Pastoral Office, it is intended that
the accumulated earnings and principal of the
fund will be reinvested. In addition, the
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund includes
other miscellaneous temporary and perma-
nently restricted net assets, the use of which is
restricted by the respective gift agreements.
Activity in the Archdiocesan Endowment
Fund for fiscal year 2008 and 2007 is summa-
rized as follows:

NOTE H--CONTINGENCIES
The Archdiocese is contingently liable as

guarantor for certain bank debts of its
member parishes (for capital projects) and of
its priests (for automobiles). In the event the

continued on page 22
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Seminary Burses Fund (A) 
Joseph Danne Fund (B) 
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund (C):

Operating activity 
Archdiocesan Pastoral Center 
Archbishop’s residence 
Our Lady of Victory 
(for maternity services) 
Mount St. Mary High School 
Catholic school support 
Tuition for Bombing Survivors   
Disaster education 
Disaster relief 
Pastoral ministry 
Crested Butte 
Salatka & Zagar
Elderly support 
Youth camp 

Total Archdiocesan Endowment Fund 
St. Joseph’s Children’s Fund (D) 
Land, Buildings, and Equipment Fund* 
Operating Fund:

Self-insurance fund
Retirement benefits 
Pension plan prior service cost &

actual losses
Total Operating Fund 
Total net assets

$ – 
– 

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
–
– 
– 
–
– 
– 
–
– 

–  
–

(4,042,688) 
(4,042,688)

$(4,042,688) 

$ – 
– 

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
–
–
– 
– 
–

36,649,181

–  
– 

–  
– 

$36,649,181

$ –
–

–
–
–

–
–

269,026
337,627

– 
125

14,591
– 

11,002
95,476

– 
727,847

–
– 

–
– 

– 
– 

$727,847

$ 782,841
2,669,002

– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
– 
– 

207,587  
– 
– 
– 
– 

207,587 
– 
– 

– 
– 

– 
– 

$3,659,430

$ 4,409,445
3,777,959

20,246,577
3,171,736
1,772,795

633,704
2,346,974
1,560,492

337,627
11,771
2,549

222,178
55,039
11,002
95,476

295,600
30,763,520
3,498,215

36,649,181

2,910,382
(1,101,428)

(4,042,688)
(2,233,734)

$ 76,864,586

Designated
and

Operating

Accumulated
Other

Compre- 
hensive Loss

Net
Investment

in Land,
Buildings &
Equipment

(Note E)

Tempo-
rarily

Restricted

Perma-
nently

Restricted Total

NOTE G — NET ASSETS 2007

$3,626,604
1,108,957

20,246,577
3,171,736
1,772,795

633,704
2,346,974
1,291,466

–
11,771
2,424

–
55,039

–
–  

295,600
29,828,086
3,498,215

–

2,910,382
(1,101,428)

–
1,808,954

$39,870,816

Notes

2007
$7,663,740 
16,641,821 
4,881,547 
3,205,149 

496,308

2,658,640
1,101,976

$36,649,181

2008
$7,663,739
22,178,502
4,881,547
3,364,768

496,308

2,659,640
1,108,041

$42,352,545

Land and buildings:
The Pastoral Center
Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School
Youth Camp
Other
Archbishop’s residence

Land held for parish sites and 
future development

Furniture and equipment
Total land, buildings, and equipment

Net assets at
beginning of year 

Contributions 

Net investment
income 

Other income 

Expenses 

Inter-Fund 
transfers

Net assets at end
of year

2007

$27,417,171

562,458

5,263,953

366,969

(2,482,510)

(364,521)

$30,763,520

2008

$30,763,520

721,588

545,149

337,967

(2,772,115)

(952,252)

$28,643,857

Unrestricted
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debtors fail to make the required principal and interest payments on the bank
debt, the Pastoral Office would be required to make such payments. The total
bank debt (collateralized by real estate and automobiles) for which the Pastoral
Office is guarantor as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Additionally, St. Ann’s and All Saints Catholic School, Inc. (“All Saints”)
have obligations as of June 30, 2008 related to revenue bonds in the amounts of
$13,950,000 (payable in annual installments ranging from $355,000 to
$945,000 plus interest at rates ranging from 4.3 percent to 5 percent, maturing
in 2028) and $2,690,000 (payable in annual installments ranging from $330,000
to $395,000 plus interest at rates ranging from 4.3 percent to 4.8 percent,
maturing in 2013), respectively, that are guaranteed by the Archdiocese.
Remaining payments (net of reserve fund balances) total approximately
$22,117,000 for St. Ann’s and $2,726,000 for All Saints as of June 30, 2008. To
date, All Saints has not generated adequate cash flows to make principal and
interest payments due on its bonds. Principal and interest payments made by
the Pastoral Office on behalf of All Saints during fiscal years 2008 and 2007
were $429,304 and $415,542, respectively. The Pastoral Office expects to pay All
Saints’ bond principal and interest payments through December 2013. As of
June 30, 2008, the Pastoral Office has accrued $2,366,975 (net of a $358,704 dis-
count at 6 percent), which represents the present value of All Saints’ principal
and interest payments through December 2013. The Pastoral Office will seek
reimbursement from All Saints for all interest and bond payments made on its
behalf, under repayment terms not yet established. During fiscal year 2008, All
Saints made payments to the Pastoral Office of $142,003 (none in 2007) as reim-
bursement for principal and interest payments made on their behalf. As of June
30, 2008 and 2007, the Pastoral Office has an account receivable from All Saints
of $3,255,868 and $2,965,948, respectively, which represents a portion of the
payments made by the Pastoral Office on behalf of All Saints. This receivable
has been fully reserved due to the uncertainty of future cash flows from All
Saints’ operations.

NOTE I--PENSION BENEFIT PLANS
The Pastoral Office has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit

pension plan that covers all incardinated priests (the “Pension Plan”). The
priests are eligible to receive pension benefits upon reaching their normal
retirement age of 75; however, early or late retirement may be granted by the
Archbishop in specific instances (average retirement age is 70). The pension
benefits include (1) monthly pension payments equal to the amount of priests’
then-current salary; (2) nursing home care provided at no cost; however, month-
ly pension payments are reduced to $100; and (3) monthly rent subsidies of
$500. The Pension Plan is currently funded by assessments to parishes, month-
ly contributions from the Pastoral Office, and receipts of discretionary contri-
butions from parishioners. The Pastoral Office uses a June 30 measurement
date for the Pension Plan. The following table sets forth the Pension Plan’s
funded status as of June 30.

In addition to the Pension Plan’s assets segregated in a trust for the
benefit of future payments under the Pension Plan, the Pastoral Office has
internally designated $3,814,468 and $3,781,193 as of June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively, of its unrestricted net assets for funding of the Pension
Plan’s obligations.

The accumulated benefit obligation was $11,350,859 and $11,607,352
as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In fiscal years 2008 and 2007,
respectively, the Pension Plan received $330,371 and $325,185 in contri-
butions from the Pastoral Office and paid $799,840 and $816,739 in bene-
fits.

During fiscal year 2008 and 2007, the Pastoral Office recognized
$208,730 of unrecognized prior service cost as a component of net
periodic benefit cost. For the year ending June 30, 2009, the Pastoral
Office expects to recognize $208,730 of prior service costs and $90,368 of
net actuarial losses as components of net periodic pension cost.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine pension benefit obli-
gations and net periodic pension benefit cost as of June 30 are as follows:

The Pastoral Office’s expected long-term return on plan assets
assumption was derived from an analysis conducted by the Pastoral
Office’s actuaries. The analysis included a review of the asset allocation
strategy, anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset
classes, risks and correlations for each of the asset classes that comprise
the asset mix. While the analysis gives appropriate consideration to recent
performance and historical returns, the assumption is primarily a long-
term, prospective rate.

In setting investment policies and strategies, the ability of the select-
ed investment mix to fund the pension plan liabilities effectively, meet the
long term asset return target of 8 percent and align the selected mix with
the risk tolerance of the plants fiduciaries were taken into account. The
strategic mix has reduced exposure to an equity market risk and increased
allocation to asset classes which are not highly correlated as well as asset
classes where management has historically generated excess returns and
places greater emphasis on manager skills to produce excess return while
employing various risk mitigation strategies to reduce volatility.

The Pastoral Office expects to contribute $438,267 to the Pension Plan
in fiscal year 2009.
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St. Mark the Evangelist Church (Norman, Oklahoma),
7.55 percent mortgage note payable to bank, due in monthly
installments of $32,923 until October 2011 when the out-
standing balance becomes due (remaining payments total
$4.9 million as of June 30, 2008)

Others
Total bank debts guaranteed (not included in the

accompanying statements of financial position)

$3,950,847
70,729

$4,021,576

Plan assets at fair value
Less actuarial present value of projected benefit
obligations 
Unfunded status 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost 

2008
$3,567,118
12,801,760
(9,234,642)

2,600,451
1,031,123

(5,603,068)

2007
$ 4,134,073
13,059,381
(8,925,308)

2,802,835
1,239,853

$(4,882,620)

Amounts reflected in the statments of financial position:

Accrued pension benefit cost
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

2007
$(8,925,308)

4,042,688
$(4,882,620)

2008
$(9,234,642)

3,631,574
$(5,603,068)

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase
Rate of nursing home care increase
Expected long-term return on plan assets

2007
6%
5%
3%
8%

2008
6%
5%
3%
8%

Weighted average asset allocations as of June 30, by asset category, are as
follows:

Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

2007
65.2%
31.1%
3.7%

100.0%

2008
61.9%
30.8%
7.3%

100.0%
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Notes
continued from page 22

Estimated Future Benefit Payments — The following benefit payments,
which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

The Pastoral Office also sponsors a 403(b) Church Retirement Plan (the
“403(b) Plan”). The 403(b) Plan covers substantially all Archdiocesan or affili-
ated Catholic organizations’ lay employees. Each affiliated Catholic organiza-
tion contributes a discretionary amount (3 percent of the participant’s salary
for fiscal years 2008 and 2007). In addition, organizations match the first 4 per-
cent of employee contributions at 50 percent of such amount. New participants
become vested in six years (20 percent per year after the second year of
service). Expenses for the Pastoral Office’s portion of the 403(b) Plan were not
significant in fiscal years 2008 or 2007.

NOTE J--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On October 20, 2008, the Pastoral Office deposited $2,309,792 with the

trustee of the All Saints revenue bonds, which are guaranteed by the Pastoral
Office (see Note H). The trustee provided the bond holders with 30 days notice
that the Pastoral Office would utilize the early redemption option and redeem
the bonds at 102 percent effective December 1, 2008.

The $2,309,792 deposited by the Pastoral Office was utilized to redeem the
bonds, which will result in the associated guarantee liability of $2,366,975 as of
June 30, 2008 being reduced to $0 in fiscal year 2009. Of the amounts paid by
the Pastoral Office on behalf of the All Saints, $393,443 will be added to All
Saints accounts receivable balance and $1,916,349 will be established as a note
receivable from All Saints as part of the PDLF to be payable over five years.

In September 2004, the Pastoral Office was named in a lawsuit involving
coverage provided under the Pastoral Office’s accident and health insurance
plan. The Pastoral Office had defended the claim for several years as well as fil-
ing countersuit against its excess insurance providers. On January 9, 2009, the
Pastoral Office participated in a multi-party legal settlement involving this
claim, which is expected to be paid in February 2009. Upon payment of the set-
tlement, a dismissal of the case will be filed. The Pastoral Office’s net portion of
the settlement has been accrued in the June 30, 2008 financial statements.

Based on the advice of legal counsel, the Pastoral Office believes that reso-
lution of all other outstanding litigation involving the Pastoral Office will not
have a material adverse effect on its financial statements, however, these
matters are inherently difficult to predict with any degree of certainty and
material future claims are possible.

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Years 2013-2017

$792,742
754,808
717,871
655,333
677,121

2,792,376
$6,390,251

Jobs Box Catholics Called
Principal Opening

St. Philip Neri School in Midwest
City is seeking a principal for the
2009-10 school year. St. Philip Neri, a
school of approximately 220 students,
enrolls Pre-K (3-year-olds) through
grade 8. The school is accredited by
the Oklahoma Conference of Catholic
School Accreditation Association,
which is recognized by the state of
Oklahoma. A candidate must be a
practicing Catholic with at least three
years of teaching experience, prefer-
ably in a Catholic school. Applicant
should have a master’s degree in edu-
cational administration or a related
field. The position is available July 1,
2009, with the interview to be-gin
soon. An application may be obtained
from Office of the Superintendent,
P.O. Box 32180, OKC 73123, or call
(405) 721-4202 or e-mail inquiries to
mdubey@catharchdioceseokc.org.

Elementary Principal Position 
Holy Trinity Catholic School is

a 3-year-old to eighth-grade school
located in Okarche. Holy Trinity
enrolls around 90 students with a
professional staff of 15, and is fully
accredited by the Oklahoma
Conference of Catholic School Accre-
ditation Association which is recog-
nized by the state of Oklahoma.
Candidates for principal must be will-
ing to assume responsibility for the

day-to-day administration of the
school as well as assist in developing
long-range goals. Excellent communi-
cation skills and enthusiasm for
developing and maintaining a top
grade academic and religious-oriented
school are a must. Candidate must be
a practicing Catholic with a master’s
degree in educational administration
or related field and a minimum of
three years educational experience.
Position is available for the 2009-10
school year. An application may be
obtained from Office of the Superin-
tendent, P.O. Box 32180, OKC 73123,
call (405) 721-4202 or e-mail mdubey-
@catharchdioceseokc.org.

Center of Family Love Openings
The Center of Family Love in

Okarche has openings for LPN’s -
Full-time. DCT’s - Certified is great, if
not we will train. Shifts available: 7
a.m. to 3 p.m., 11 p.m. to 7 a.m.
Dietary aide - Help prepares meals.
Full-time hours available. House-
keeper and laundry aide - Full-time
days available, must be able to lift
25 pounds. Full-time maintenance
worker - Painting, drywall, general
mechanical experience preferred. To
apply, call 263-4658, fax 263-4718, e-
mail alemke@cflinc.org or in person at
635 W. Texas, Okarche 73762. EOE 

For a full list of Jobs, go to
www.catharchdioceseokc.org

continued from page 1
overview of the political process and
the status of current legislative.

Father Gallatin, Pastor
Emeritus of St. Charles Borromeo
Church of Oklahoma City, will  pres-
ent the Gospel connection to politi-
cal advocacy.

“Participation in public life is a
moral obligation as taught by the
Church,” states Koorie “and the
Commission for Justice and Human
Development is working with

Catholic Charities to provide these
opportunities for Catholics to inter-
act with their state leaders.” A
presentation  by  Koorie  will  be
held during lunch regarding faith,
advocacy and just laws.

The Commission for Justice and
Human Development works in the
Catholic Archdiocese of Oklahoma
City to promote justice and peace.
For  information, call  Catholic
Charities of Oklahoma City, 405-
523-3003.

Catholics Oppose Health Secretary Nominee
WASHINGTON D.C., (CNA). —

Catholic opponents of Kansas Gov.
Kathleen Sebelius' nomination to
become Secretary of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human
Services have launched a new website
which decries her "extremist support
for abortion" and solicits petition sig-
natures protesting her nomination.

The site www.catholicsagainstse-
belius.org characterizes Gov. Sebelius,
a Democrat and self-described
Catholic, as "an avid supporter of the
most radical abortion politics."

It notes her legislative and guber-
natorial efforts to promote and defend
unrestricted abortion access, criticiz-
ing her vetoes for abortion clinic safety

regulations and laws requiring
informed consent.

Also reported at the site are
Sebelius' connections to late-term abor-
tionist Dr. George Tiller, who is facing
criminal charges for allegedly perform-
ing illegal late-term abortions.The gov-
ernor hosted a party for Tiller at the
governor's mansion after he purchased
the event as part of a fundraiser.

The site highlights Archbishop of
Kansas City Joseph Naumann's
rebuke of Gov. Sebelius. In 2008 the
archbishop said the governor should
refrain from receiving Communion
until she makes a worthy confession
and publicly retracts her support for
abortion rights.
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If Saint Paul can go from persecutor of early
Christians to hero of the Church, the possibility
exists that through prayer, President Barak Obama
can be transformed as well. Saint Paul turned away
from killing Christians and became one of Christ's
great allies. The prayer of Father Bruce Nieli is that
President Obama will turn away from his radical
stand on abortion and become a champion for life,
especially for the unborn.

Father Nieli, C.S.P. is a Paulist priest. He made
the comment while addressing the more than 800
men who attended the 13th annual Catholic Men's
Conference. Also known as "In the Father's
Footsteps", the conference held Feb. 28 at Bishop
McGuinness Catholic High School attracted men of
all ages and from across the Archdiocese of
Oklahoma City and further. A few dozen men trav-
eled from Tulsa, while others came from as far as
Arkansas, Texas and Kansas to attend the one-day
event. High school and college students were among
those in the audience.

With Emmaus Road, a band of Catholic musi-
cians and singers, delivering inspirational  Catholic
"rock", some 14 priests heard confessions as men
lined up for the opportunity to partake in the
Sacrament of Reconciliation.

Father Nieli is no stranger to Oklahoma. He has
addressed the Men's Conference before and was
invited by the late Father Jack Petuskey to partici-
pate in a "healing" service following the 1995
Oklahoma City bombing. He said it was at that
service where he encountered a man who had lost
two daughters. Father Nieli said naturally the man
was distraught and his faith was shaken to the core.
But when he was told at every Eucharistic celebra-
tion his two daughters are present he understood. A

peace enveloped the man and he went on to become
a Eucharistic minister.

"The Eucharistic Table unites heaven and
earth," Father Nieli said. "It can unify the United
States."

Father Nieli said Catholic men in the U.S. have
a responsibility to be "pro-active" in making the
nation a "true land of liberty and justice for all." He
cited several Catholic men who because of their
faith allowed God to use them to help spread the
Gospel message. Among those mentioned by Father
Nieli was Cesar Chavez, considered the father of the
farm labor movement. Also, Danny Thomas who
Father Nieli said "brought the Gospel to the media"
and made good on his promise to God. Thomas was
instrumental in the founding of Saint Jude's
Children's Research Hospital in Memphis. A hospi-
tal where Father Nieli said "universal health care"

has been practiced for years. He mentioned Father
Michael Judge, the Catholic priest who despite bat-
tling his own addiction to alcohol, gave his life when
he rushed to help the victims at the World Trade
Center on Sept. 11, 2001.

Father Nieli said he would love to take
President Obama on a tour of Memphis, his home
for many years. He would show him the many his-
toric sites and then he would take him to his parish,
Saint Patrick's. It was in the dining room of Saint
Patrick's where the Memphis sanitation workers
gathered to plan their protest against the unfair
working conditions the city forced on them. It was
that strike by the sanitation workers that led to Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. coming to Memphis in April
of 1968. Today, the dining room has been trans-
formed into a chapel. The altar, or Eucharistic table,
now sits where the sanitation workers gathered so
many years ago. United in their struggle for justice.

Father Nieli offered the words he would express
to President Obama if the two were together inside
the historic chapel.

"Mr. President, this is the Eucharistic Table. It
is the table of humanity. This table is the bread of
life. It is the table that unites the unborn, the dead,
the immigrants, the condemned, the couples who
are struggling, the hopeless, the poor and the rich.

"Mr. President, this Eucharistic table unites
heaven and earth.

"Mr. President, I hear you are looking for a
church. Mr. President, why don't you think of becom-
ing Catholic?"

A few hours later,Archbishop Beltran would cel-
ebrate Mass at the Eucharistic Table for the 800
men who attended the 13th Annual Catholic Men's
Conference.

Paulist Priest: Catholic Men Must Pray for Conversion of Nation
By Ray Dyer

The Sooner Catholic

Members of the Oklahoma Catholic Men's Conference organizational team place their hands on the
shoulders of archdiocesan priests as prayers are recited before the clergy begins to hear confessions.

Bob Scheer performs "The Father's Prayer" a beautiful song he composed, while Father Bruce Nieli,
CSP, offers words of wisdom to the audience. Photos/Sooner Catholic


